
Page 1 of 2 

 

This will be a hybrid meeting held in person in the Village Council Chambers with a remote participation option available via Zoom due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The Village of Beverly Hills will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audiotapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities attending the meeting upon three 
working days’ notice to the Village. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Village by writing or 
phone, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Beverly Hills, MI 48025 (248) 646-6404. 

Village of Beverly Hills             Municipal Building 
Regular Village Council Meeting               18500 W. 13 Mile Road  
Tuesday, October 17, 2023                                 7:30 p.m. 
 

Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82945955653  
Meeting ID: 829 4595 5653 
Dial in: 1-646-876-9923 (US)  

 
AGENDA 

 
Roll Call/Call to order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Amendments to Agenda/Approve Agenda 
 
Community Announcements 
 
Public Comments on items not on the published agenda 
 
Consent Agenda 
1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held October 3, 2023. 
2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, October 9, 2023. 
3. Set public hearing date for November 7, 2023 to receive comments on the use of Community 

Development Block Grant funds for Program Year 2024.  
4. Set public hearing date for November 7, 2023 to review special land use request for 31535 

Southfield Road.  
 

Business Agenda 
1. Review and consider renewal of insurance with the Michigan Municipal Risk Management 

Authority (MMRMA). 
2. Review and consider annual contract with Next to provide Senior Services.  
3. Review and consider amendments to the Local Planning Infrastructure Grant Agreement.  
4. Review and consider Michigan Natural Resource Trust Fund Project Agreement for the Wendbrook 

property acquisition.  
5. Second announcement of a vacancy on the Planning Commission.  

 

Public Comments 
 
Manager’s report 
 
Council comments 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82945955653


Page 2 of 2 

 

This will be a hybrid meeting held in person in the Village Council Chambers with a remote participation option available via Zoom due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The Village of Beverly Hills will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audiotapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities attending the meeting upon three 
working days’ notice to the Village. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Village by writing or 
phone, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Beverly Hills, MI 48025 (248) 646-6404. 

 
Adjournment 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 3, 2023 – PAGE 1 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Present: President George; President Pro-Tem Hrydziuszko; Members: Drummond, 

Mooney, and O’Gorman 

 

Absent: Abboud and Kecskemeti 

 

Also Present: Village Manager, Campbell 

  Village Clerk/Assistant Manager, Rutkowski   

  Village Attorney, Ryan 

 

ROLL CALL/CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President George called the regular Village Council meeting to order at 7:35 p.m. in the Village 

Council Chambers located at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025. The Pledge 

of Allegiance was recited by those in attendance. 

 

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA/APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, to approve the agenda as published.  

 

 Motion passed.   

 

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Larissa Richardson on behalf of Representative Rashida Tlaib, said that Tlaib sends her greetings. 

She said Tlaib’s Southfield office holds office hours every Tuesday and Thursday for the 

community and encouraged residents to reach out.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, be it resolved, the consent agenda is approved. 

1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a special Council meeting held September 18, 2023. 

2. Review and consider approval of minutes of a special Council meeting held September 19, 2023. 

3. Review and consider approval of minutes of a Closed Session meeting held September 19, 2023. 

4. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held September 19, 2023. 

5. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, September 25, 2023. 

6. Review and consider Parks & Recreation Board’s recommendation to extend Beverly Park 

pavilion rental season from April to November 2024.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (5-0) 

 

BUSINESS AGENDA 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT WITH THE 

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS LIEUTENANTS AND SERGEANTS ASSOCIATION 

Campbell provided an overview. In August of 2023, the Public Safety Command Union and the 

Village of Beverly Hills reached a tentative agreement for Collective Bargaining Agreement that 

expired in June of 2023. The Administration presented the tentative agreement to Council at the 

closed session on September 19, 2023. The Council directed the Administration to prepare the 

final CBA for ratification. The CBA was provided in the meeting packet.  

C1 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 3, 2023 – PAGE 2 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 

A summary of the terms agreed upon in the tentative agreement and included in the CBA are set 

forth below: 

 

• Three (3) year contract (ending June 30, 2026) 

 

• Wages shall be the following percentages above the highest base wages of PSOs. 

 

   7/1/2023 7/1/2024 7/1/2025 

Lieutenant +17%  +19%  +21.5% 

Sergeant +12%  +13.5% +15% 

 

• Economic improvements to mirror those provided to patrol officers: 

 

- 2% shift premium for employees whose home shift is the midnight shift; 2% bureau 

premium for employees assigned to the Detective Bureau, Fire Prevention Bureau, or 

any other special assignment that the employee is considered subject to being on-call.  

 

- FTO compensation will be increased to 2 hours of compensatory time for each full duty 

day as the training FTO (currently 1.5 hours of compensatory time). 

 

- The Employer contribution to the DC plan will be increased as follows (total increase 

of 1.5%, same as the PSOs): 

 

1.0% increase retroactive to 7/1/23 

0.5% increase effective 7/1/24  

 

• Overtime rate will be double-time (2.0) if employees are forced to work a 12-hour shift. 

 

• FTO compensation will be increased to 2 hours of compensatory time (currently 1.5 hours 

of compensatory time).  

 

• Longevity increased by $500 increments to $1000 for 5 years of service; $2000 for 10 years 

of service; $2500 for 15 years of service; and $3500 for 20 years of service. 

 

• Language changes (disciplinary process, promotions, special assignments, and 

incorporating current policies regarding overtime, leave bank payouts, and long-term 

disability into the contract) 

 

Motion by Hrydziuszko, second by Mooney, be it resolved that the Council for the 

Village of Beverly Hills approves and ratifies the tentative agreement between the 

Village of Beverly Hills and Michigan Association of Police as bargaining unit for the 

Beverly Hills Public Safety Lieutenants and Sergeants Association. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (5-0)   

  



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 3, 2023 – PAGE 3 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE 387 TO 

AMEND THE VILLAGE CODE, CHAPTER 42, SECTION 42.12, GAMES IN STREETS 

Campbell provided an overview. When the Village decided to place its charter and ordinances on 

Municode, there was some discussion about ordinances that needed to be updated. At that time, 

Ordinance 42.12, Games in Streets, was an ordinance that was mentioned by members of Council 

as an ordinance that could be updated. In addition, during conversations with the attorney for 

Municode while reviewing the Village ordinances, the attorney asked if Games in Streets had been 

updated or removed.  

 

Based on these factors, the Administration scheduled a public hearing for September 5, 2023 to 

address these matters. The public hearing and first reading were tabled at the September 5, 2023 

meeting and later held at the September 19, 2023 meeting. The Administration has proposed 

suggested changes to the Games in Streets ordinance for Council consideration in a First Reading. 

Council requested one point of clarification.  

 

Ryan gave the second reading of the proposed ordinance.  

 

Motion by Hrydziuszko, second by Mooney, be it ordained the Beverly Hills Village 

Council approves Ordinance 387 to amended Section 42.12 of the Beverly Hills Municipal 

Code, Games in Streets:  

 

Section 1.01. That Village of Beverly Hills Ordinance Chapter 42, Section 42.12, 

Games in Streets, for the Village of Beverly Hills is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

42.12 GAMES IN STREETS. No person shall affix or leave a sports apparatus, including, 

but not limited to, a basketball hoop, hockey net, or soccer goal ten (10) feet from the 

recognized street surface.  No apparatus shall obstruct any Village sidewalk. 

 

PENALTIES. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 

Ordinance shall be responsible for a civil infraction, and upon conviction thereof, shall be 

fined no less than five hundred dollars ($500.00) for each such offense, or such fine in the 

discretion of the court, together with the costs of such prosecution. Each day that a 

violation of this Ordinance continues shall be a separate offense. 

 

Enforcement. In addition to ordering the defendant determined to be responsible for a civil 

infraction to pay a civil fine, costs, damages and expenses, the judge or magistrate shall be 

authorized to issue any judgment, writ or order necessary to enforce, or enjoin violation of 

this Chapter. 

 

Section 2.01. SEVERABILITY. If any section, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall 

be declared to be inconsistent with the Constitution and laws of the State of Michigan and 

voided by any court of competent jurisdiction, said section, clause or provision declared to 

be unconstitutional and void shall thereby cease to be a part of this Ordinance, but the 

remainder of this Ordinance shall stand and be in full force. 

 

Section 3.01. SAVING CLAUSE. All proceedings pending and all rights and liabilities 

existing, acquired or incurred at the time this Ordinance takes effect are saved and may be 

consummated according to the law when they were commenced. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 3, 2023 – PAGE 4 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 

Section 4.01. REPEALER. Any Ordinance conflicting with this Ordinance be and the 

same is hereby repealed. 

 

Section 5.01. EFFECTIVE DATE. A public hearing having been held by the Village 

Council on September 19, 2023, the provision of this Ordinance shall become effective 20 

days following its publication in The Birmingham-Bloomfield Eagle, a newspaper 

circulated within said Village. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (5-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER MICHIGAN NATURAL RESOURCES TRUST FUND 

PROJECT AGREEMENT FOR THE WENDBROOK PROPERTY ACQUISITION 

Campbell provided an overview. In February of 2022, the Village of Beverly Hills submitted an 

application to the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund for an acquisition grant to purchase 

property located at 30815 Wendbrook in Beverly Hills, MI.  The project is entitled the Rouge 

River Acquisition.  The application requested that the MNRTF issue an acquisition grant amount 

of $1,500,000 with the Village providing a match of $500,000 to cover a proposed purchase price 

of $2,000,000. The proposed Beverly Hills match was to come from the current owner of the 

property, Mike and Martha White. 

 

In December of 2022, the MNRTF approved a grant of $1,000,000 dollars to fund the purchase of 

the River Rogue Acquisition Project.  The required match from the Village of Beverly Hills is 

$333,400 dollars under the grant.  The Whites have stated that they will donate the grant match of 

$333,400 and the remaining $666,600 to the Village of Beverly Hills for the purchase of the 

property. 

  

On August 7, 2023, the DNR forwarded a Project Agreement to the Village of Beverly Hills with 

its standard terms and conditions for an acquisition. The Project Agreement is attached to this 

memorandum. In addition, the Project Agreement requires that the Village include a legal 

description and boundary map. A legal description and boundary map is attached to this 

memorandum.  The Agreement sets forth the grant amount provided by the MNRTF and the 

Village’s required match.  It also states that the Village must choose a closing option at the signing 

of this Agreement.  The closing options are: 

 

- Utilizing a Grant Reimbursement Process   

- Utilizing an Escrow Closing Process 

 

The Grantee shall also immediately make funds available to meet the match, complete a 40 year 

title search, an environmental assessment, and obtain two (2) appraisals prior the purchase of the 

property. Under the Agreement, the acquisition must be completed by August 31, 2025. The 

Agreement sets forth conditions and requirements related to the purchase of the property.   

 

Please be advised that the Agreement may be cancelled by the DNR with a 30-day notice to the 

Village, due to Executive Order, budgetary reduction, or other lack of funding. The Village may 

terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason. Both parties can also mutually cancel the 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 3, 2023 – PAGE 5 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

agreement at any time as well. The DNR requires that the Agreement is approved by resolution. 

The proposed resolution was provided for review and consideration. 

 

O’Gorman asked about the deadline for submitting the resolution and agreement. Campbell stated 

that the DNR would like the documents by the end of October.  

 

There was discussion about tabling this item since two members of Council were absent from this 

meeting.  

 

Motion by O’Gorman, second by Hrydziuszko, the Beverly Hills Village Council tables 

the item to consider the MNRTF Project Agreement for the Wendbrook property 

acquisition until a special session can be held due to two absences on the Council.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Drummond – yes  

George – yes 

Hrydziuszko – yes 

Mooney – no  

O’Gorman – yes 

Motion passed (4-1) 

 

George asked the Clerk to get Council’s availability to schedule a special session for the following 

Tuesday, Wednesday, or Thursday. 

 

Mooney said the decision should be made during a regular, televised meeting.  

 

George said that he was trying to accommodate everyone’s schedule and availability.  

 

ACCEPT ANDREW DRUMMOND’S RESIGNATION FROM THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION AND FIRST ANNOUNCEMENT OF A VACANCY ON THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION 

Campbell gave an overview. Andrew Drummond previously held a seat on the Beverly Hills 

Planning Commission, but with his recent appointment to the Village Council, a vacancy was 

created on the Commission. The vacancy is for a partial term ending June 30, 2024. 

 

The Planning Commission generally meets on the fourth Wednesday of the month at 7:30 p.m. 

The Planning Commission advises the Village Council regarding the proper physical development 

of Beverly Hills. The Commission recommends ordinances or amendments to existing ordinances. 

It also makes recommendations on zoning changes, site plan developments, and special approval 

uses. 

 

All interested and eligible residents of Beverly Hills are encouraged to apply to become a member 

of the Planning Commission. Applications are available on the Village website or by emailing the 

Village Clerk at krutkowski@villagebeverlyhills.com. Applications may be submitted to the 

Clerk’s office via email, regular mail, in person, or using the drop box located outside the Village 

office (18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025). A copy of the application is included 

in this meeting packet. Applications are due Tuesday, October 31, 2023.  

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 3, 2023 – PAGE 6 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, the Beverly Hills Village Council accepts 

Andrew Drummond’s resignation from the Planning Commission and makes the first 

announcement of a vacancy on the Planning Commission for a partial term ending June 30, 

2024. 

 

 Motion passed.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

George Barnes, Wendbrook, said he wants to be sure that he is at the meeting when the Council 

considers the project agreement for Wendbrook. He stated that he has lived on that street since 

1978. He said there are other parks in the Village that people can reasonably access. He does not 

think that a park should be on a residential street and was concerned about increased traffic and 

noise.  

 

Marlisa Meah, Billington Ct., thinks Wendbrook would be better used for developed houses and 

an increased tax base. She said Beverly Hills has enough parks, but not enough senior citizen 

housing.  

 

Suzanne Grimm, Vernon, offered to give other residents more background information on the 

Wendbrook property. She said the owners’ intention is to preserve the land. She said she thinks it 

will be good for the community. 

 

Mike Garvey, Amherst, said that the DNR money will evaporate if the Village does not go through 

with the park at Wendbrook. He asked if the DNR could pull the money if the Village does not 

progress the way that they envision.  

 

Amru Meah, Billington Ct., asked if residents missed the opportunity to vote on how Wendbrook 

should be developed.  

 

David Tillman, Vernon, said his house backs up to Wendbrook and it is a gorgeous piece of 

property, which is one of the main reasons he purchased it. He loves the nature and peace in the 

area. He thought that it would remain zoned as it is. He does not think a parking lot should be built 

because it would result in more vehicles and more noise. He said it would change the character of 

the neighborhood. He said he moved to Beverly Hills to get away from the noise and could not 

have reasonably anticipated that this project would move forward when he first purchased his 

home. 

 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

Java and Jazz - The final Java and Jazz of the season will be held on Sunday, October 15, 2023 

from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. featuring the Ryan Bills Trio. Thank you to the Beverly Hills Lions 

Club for sponsoring the coffee for this event. 

 

Beverly Hills Lions Club Fall Festival - The Beverly Hills Lions Club is holding their annual Fall 

Festival at the Beverly Park pavilion on Sunday, October 15th from 1:00 to 4:00 p.m. The event is 

open to the public. Free cider and donuts will be available along with activities for children. 

 

Halloween Hoot - The Halloween Hoot will be held at Beverly Park on Saturday, October 28, 2023 

from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. We have received an overwhelming response this year and we are looking 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 3, 2023 – PAGE 7 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

forward to seeing all of the decorated treat stations! Thanks to our sponsors, this event is free to 

attend.  

 

Columbus Day - The Village Offices are open on Columbus Day and Trash/Recycling Pickup will 

not be delayed the week of October 9th. 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Hrydziuszko commented on the mill pond at Riverside Park and the possibility of putting in a 

windmill and aerator, which may be coming before Council to approve at an upcoming meeting. 

 

George asked about getting an opinion from Administration and the Attorney on the aerator 

apparatus depending on whose property it would be placed. He went over the acquisition grant 

guidelines. He thanked Administration for their work on negotiations with the command unit.    

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, to adjourn the meeting at 8:18 p.m.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

 

 

 

John George     Kristin Rutkowski   

Council President     Village Clerk   



TO PRESIDENT GEORGE & MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL.   THE FOLLOWING IS A LIST OF

EXPENDITURES FOR APPROVAL.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RUN FROM 09/26/2023 THROUGH 10/09/2023.

ACCOUNT TOTALS:

101 GENERAL FUND $84,681.68

202 MAJOR ROAD FUND $15,437.91

203 LOCAL STREET FUND $70,823.39

205 PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT FUND $30,305.20

287 ARPA FUND $152,314.25

401 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND $32,562.24

592 WATER/SEWER OPERATION FUND $303,882.93

TOTAL $690,007.60

MANUAL CHECKS- COMERICA 

MANUAL CHECKS- INDEPENDENT $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $690,007.60

GRAND TOTAL $690,007.60

C2



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 1/2Page: 10/09/2023 08:33 AM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 09/26/2023 - 10/09/2023

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank ARPA COMERICA - ARPA FUNDS

143,906.84 BIDIGARE CONTRACTORS, INC.6087818ARPA10/09/2023
8,407.41 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0850019ARPA10/09/2023

ARPA TOTALS:

152,314.25 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
152,314.25 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank COM COMERICA

1,325.20 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES6021787725COM10/09/2023
494.46 APOLLO FIRE APPARATUS3116487726COM10/09/2023
263.12 APPRIVER, LLC5912587727COM10/09/2023
250.00 ARMANDO TABORGA6063387728COM10/09/2023
66.18 ARROW OFFICE SUPPLY CO.5180287729COM10/09/2023

2,600.00 ASCENSUS6072887730COM10/09/2023
9,288.00 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. 5941987731COM10/09/2023

143.29 BADGER METER INC0200087732COM10/09/2023
156.55 BERKLEY PUBLIC SAFETY6088087733COM10/09/2023
319.73 BEVERLY HILLS ACE5140987734COM10/09/2023
250.00 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS5092087735COM10/09/2023
171.25 C&G PUBLISHING4998087736COM10/09/2023
750.60 CADILLAC ASPHALT, LLC5895987737COM10/09/2023
574.01 CARRIER & GABLE0370087738COM10/09/2023
250.00 CHRISTOPHER MAKRIS6088787739COM10/09/2023
64.37 CINTAS CORPORATION #315934787740COM10/09/2023
858.00 CLEANNET5932387741COM10/09/2023
53.31 COMCAST5143987742COM10/09/2023

36,141.00 COMEAU EQUIPMENT CO INC.0450087743COM10/09/2023
457.75 CTS-COMPANIES5864887744COM10/09/2023

2,271.78 D'ANGELO BROTHERS6015287745COM10/09/2023
250.00 DEBORAH KENT5992587746COM10/09/2023
300.00 DENTON GROUP, LLC6087687747COM10/09/2023
708.72 DETROIT SALT COMPANY5202587748COM10/09/2023

7,530.00 DTE ENERGY5138587749COM10/09/2023
6,421.60 DTE ENERGY5138587750COM10/09/2023

741.50 EAGLE LANDSCAPING & SUPPLY6037287751COM10/09/2023
250.00 ERIKA BRODERDORF5909787752COM10/09/2023
250.00 GAIL LINDEN6088487753COM10/09/2023

8,086.75 GEI CONSULTANTS, INC.6061187754COM10/09/2023
600.00 GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SVCS.5348987755COM10/09/2023
112.00 GUNNERS METERS & PARTS INC.4964687756COM10/09/2023

1,372.00 HALT FIRE5862587757COM10/09/2023
250.00 HEATHER BILLS6089287758COM10/09/2023
250.00 HEATHER CHESNUTT6074387759COM10/09/2023

41,205.64 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0850087760COM10/09/2023
1,368.05 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0850087761COM10/09/2023

407.49 HURON VALLEY GUNS6075087762COM10/09/2023
346.00 HYDROCORP5895087763COM10/09/2023
63.39 J.C. EHRLICH5983987764COM10/09/2023

7,596.25 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY3907087765COM10/09/2023
840.00 JAMES HEALY5942387766COM10/09/2023
63.88 JANICE HAUSMAN5110187767COM10/09/2023

4,575.00 JASON'S OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC5915887768COM10/09/2023
125.24 JAY BLENKHORN6084687769COM10/09/2023

1,324.82 JOHNSON THERMOL-TEMP INC.5958287770COM10/09/2023
250.00 JONATHON BRINKER6089087771COM10/09/2023
250.00 JOSEPH ANDERSON5157987772COM10/09/2023
250.00 LAURA DAGOSTINO6089187773COM10/09/2023
200.00 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 5179287774COM10/09/2023
250.00 LUCIA BERRY6088887775COM10/09/2023

1,063.96 MACQUEEN EMERGENCY6062087776COM10/09/2023
250.00 MARY-CATHERINE DECARTERET6088287777COM10/09/2023
250.00 MEGAN WILHELM6088987778COM10/09/2023
250.00 MICHAEL HUDDLESTUN6088587779COM10/09/2023
250.00 MICHAEL RYAN6088387780COM10/09/2023
20.00 MICHIGAN GRAPHICS & AWARDS5203087781COM10/09/2023
102.20 MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET 5933087782COM10/09/2023
205.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER &5118287783COM10/09/2023

220,466.33 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER'S5083087784COM10/09/2023
1,111.75 OAKLAND SCHOOLS5083887785COM10/09/2023

50,000.00 PRECISION CONCRETE, INC.6087787786COM10/09/2023
766.31 PRINTING SYSTEMS1530087787COM10/09/2023
102.40 PROGRESSIVE PLUMBING SUPPLY CO.6087987788COM10/09/2023
250.00 QUEEN ESTHER WEST5174687789COM10/09/2023

38,488.00 S.O.C.R.R.A.1650087790COM10/09/2023



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 2/2Page: 10/09/2023 08:33 AM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 09/26/2023 - 10/09/2023

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

69,278.70 S.O.C.W.A.1660087791COM10/09/2023
250.00 SARAH LITTLE6088687792COM10/09/2023
250.00 TERESA SICKINGER5063587793COM10/09/2023
350.00 THE ROSSOW GROUP6088187794COM10/09/2023

8,687.50 THOMAS J RYAN PC.3104387795COM10/09/2023
900.00 VERSADIAL SOLUTIONS6055587796COM10/09/2023
250.00 WILLIAM JENKINS6074487797COM10/09/2023
946.27 WOW! BUSINESS5357287798COM10/09/2023
218.00 ZIP ETC INC2090087799COM10/09/2023

COM TOTALS:

537,693.35 Total of 75 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
537,693.35 Total of 75 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

690,007.60 Total of 77 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
690,007.60 Total of 77 Checks:



Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

To: Honorable Village President George & Village Council Members 

From: Mark Stec, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Date: 10/11/23 

RE: PC Case 23-08-10_Special Land Use Request_31535 Southfield Road 

At its September 5, 2023 meeting, Village Council referred PC Case 23-9-10 Special Land Use request for the 
conversion of the former Bed Bath & Beyond building into an indoor commercial recreation facility.  The proposal 
includes repurposing of the interior of the building for thirteen pickleball courts on the first floor with a mezzanine 
area including five golf simulator suites. The property is zoned B-1 Business.  Indoor commercial recreation facilities 
are a permitted use after special approval in the B-1 zoning district.   

After holding a public hearing on the matter at its September 27, 2023 meeting, the Planning Commission passed a 
motion to recommend approval of the request by Village Council.  The recommendation included the following 
conditions: 

1. A revised site plan addressing the following items is submitted for review by council:
• A dumpster enclosure is added to the plan
• The lighting plan is revised to show the following:

o compliance with maximum footcandle levels at property lines abutting the R-M Multiple-
Family district

o Any damaged light fixtures and support structures must be repaired or replaced (include
specifications and details if any new fixtures are proposed)

2. All dead or dying landscape plantings are replaced per final approved plans

The applicant has provided the attached revised plans addressing the above conditions.  The plans appear to meet 
the conditions.  However, a complete review of the plans will be provided to the Village Council as it considers final 
approval of the request.  Per village ordinances, upon receiving a recommendation on special land use requests from 
the Planning Commission, Village Council shall also hold a public hearing prior to making a final determination on 
the request. 

Request 

At this time, it is being requested of the Village Council to place the item on the agenda of its November 7, 2023 
meeting for public hearing and consideration of final approval.   

Attachments: 
• 10/11/23 revised site plans

C4



INDOOR RECREATION CENTER
SITE PLANS

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, MICHIGAN 48025
31535 SOUTHFIELD ROAD

NO SCALE
LOCATION MAP

APPLICANT

NELSON VENTURES
2966 INDUSTRIAL ROW DRIVE
TROY, MICHIGAN 48084
CONTACT: LINDEN NELSON
PHONE: 248.721.2100
LINDEN@NELSONVENTURES.COM

DESIGN TEAM

IN
D

O
O

R
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 C
EN

TE
R

 | 
PE

A
 J

O
B

 N
O

. 2
3-

08
42

 | 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

NORTH

CIVIL ENGINEER

PEA GROUP
1849 POND RUN
AUBURN HILLS, MICHIGAN 48326
CONTACT:  JAMES P. BUTLER, PE

JBUTLER@PEAGROUP.COM
PHONE: 844.813.2949

REVISIONS

DESCRIPTION DATE

INDEX OF DRAWINGS
NUMBER TITLE

C-0.0 COVER SHEET

C-1.0 SITE PLAN

A1.1 FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR PLANS

ARCHITECT

STUDIO DETROIT ARCHITECTS
2040 PARK AVENUE, SUITE: 200
DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226
CONTACT: ZACH RATHWELL
PHONE: 313.682.7086
ZACH@STUDIO-DETROIT.COM

LANDSCAPE PLAN

PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

A2.1 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A3.1 BUILDING SECTIONS

REFERENCED LIGHTING PLAN (BED/BATH/BEYOND)

1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIRTEEN MILE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

mstec
Text Box
Received 10/11/23PC Case 23-08-10



REVISIONS

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY
APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

NORTH

0 15 30 60

SCALE: 1" = 30'

PROJECT TITLE

CLIENT

INDOOR
RECREATION
CENTER
31535 SOUTHFIELD ROAD
BEVERLY HILLS, MICHIGAN

NELSON
VENTURES,
LLC
1401 EAST MAPLE ROAD, SUITE B
SOUTHFIELD, MICHIGAN 48084

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:
SEPTEMBER 05, 2023

DRAWING TITLE

SITE PLAN

DRAWING NUMBER:

C-1.0

PEA JOB NO.

DN.

P.M.

JPB

JPB

DES. JPB

23-0842

www.peagroup.com
t: 844.813.2949

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER (TYPICAL) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER (TYPICAL) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE 1.0' S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD WIRES & UNDERGROUND PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY HILLS CLUB #31555 SOUTHFIELD RD. 1 STORY BRICK/BLOCK BLDG PARCEL ID 24-02-427-008 OWNER: BEVERLY HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY HILLS GRILL #31471 SOUTHFIELD RD. 1 STORY BRICK/BLOCK BLDG PARCEL ID 24-02-427-012 OWNER: BHG PROPERTIES, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNTLY SQUARE APARTMENTS #31065 HUNTLY SQ. W.. 1 STORY BRICK/BLOCK BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-480-006

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE CORNER SECTION 2 T.1N., R.10E. VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN FND REMON CAP IN MON BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E 1/4 CORNER SECTION 2 T.1N., R.10E. VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN FND REMON CAP IN MON BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17 CRYSTAL SPRINGS  L. 20 OF PLATS, PAGE 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87 27'00"W   306.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87 27'00"W   427.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01 10'00"E   215.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86 49'14"E   734.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01 10'00"W 65.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 86 49'14" W 60.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE SECTION 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE (ON PROPERTY LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE 1.2' N

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE 0.5' N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
114.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
355.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
283.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY SCHOOL CRYSTAL SPRINGS LOT 9 PARCEL ID 24-02-426-001 OWNER: SCHOOL DISTRICT CITY OF  BIRMINGHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENNIS COURT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT ON BUILDING (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUCK DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-427-009

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-427-009

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-427-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-427-011

AutoCAD SHX Text
35 FT. FRONT SETBACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 FT. REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT D HUNTLY SQUARE SUB'N RECORDED L.116, P.18&19 (OCR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHFIELD ROAD ROW 60 FEET WIDE (  WIDTH) 12 WIDTH) 2 NB LANES - 2 SB LANES 1 TURN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
31535 SOUTHFIELD ROAD 1 STORY BRICK/BLOCK BLDG BUILDING HEIGHT = 23.0'  40,592 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC (EXCEPTION 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/8"GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINED PROPERTY 134853 SQ. FT. - 3.096 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT CENTERLINE L.4341, P.376

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01 10'00"W 1071.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING HEIGHT 23.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01 10'00"W   141.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING RM-MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 FT. BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING B-BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING PP-PUBLIC PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING B-BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING B-BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDICATES NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES PER AISLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LIGHT POLE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9' WIDE x 20' LONG TYPICAL REGULAR PARKING SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND SIGN LOCATION (2'-8" x 5'-9")

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER STRUCTURE (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRASS PLUG SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST INDICATOR VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX, TRANSFORMER, IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE BOX/HYDRANT VALVE BOX, SERVICE SHUTOFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND CABLE TV, CATV PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text
670

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS BUILT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET (NO INCOMING LINES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINED SEWER & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER, CLEANOUT & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER, CLEANOUT & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN, HYD., GATE VALVE, TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MAIN, VALVE & GAS LINE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC U.G. CABLE, MANHOLE, METER & HANDHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE U.G. CABLE, PEDESTAL & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC., PHONE OR CABLE TV O.H. LINE, POLE & GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAIL FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG NAIL SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. CORNER FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARD DRAIN (2' DIA. & SMALLER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIDENTIFIED STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
816.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
(816.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION Per Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Commitment No. A0768447, Commitment Date May 11, 2021 Land situated in the Village of Beverly Hills, County of Oakland and the State of Michigan, described as follows: Lot 17, except the East 334. 00 feet of the South 65.00 feet and also except the East 27.00 feet taken for widening of Southfield Road, of Crystal Springs Subdivision, on North 1/2 of Southeast 1/4 of Section 2, Town 1 North, Range 10 East, City of Southfield, Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 20 of Plats, Page 32, Oakland County Records, and described as: Beginning on the Westerly line of Southfield Road, as now established at a point distant South 01 deg. 10' 00" West, 1071.63 feet along the East line of Section 2 and North 86 deg. 49' 14" West, 60.03 feet from the East 1/4 corner of said Section 2; thence along the Westerly line of said Southfield Road, South 01 deg. 10' 00" West, 141.93 feet; thence along the Northerly line of the East 334.00 feet of the South 65.00 feet of said Lot 17, North 87 deg. 27' 00" West 306.99 feet; thence along the Westerly line of said East 334.00 feet to the South 65.00 feet of Lot 17, South 01 deg.10' 00" West, 65.00 feet; thence along the Southerly line of said Lot 17, being also the Northerly line of Huntley Square Subdivision, as recorded in Liber 116, Page 18 of Plats, Oakland County Records, North 87 deg. 27' 00" West, 427.00 feet to the Southwest corner of said Lot 17; thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 17, North 01 deg. 10' 00" East 215.00 feet to the Northwesterly corner of said Lot 17; thence along the Northerly line of said Lot 17; South 86 deg. 49' 14" East, 734.23 feet to the point of beginning.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA TABLE: SITE AREA = 134,853 SQ FT (3.096 ACRES) ZONED B (BUSINESS) GROSS BUILDING AREA = 40,592 SQ F 40,592 SQ F NET BUILDING AREA =  21,000 SQ FT 21,000 SQ FT (15,600 SQ FT COURTS; 2400 SQ FT GOLF SIMULATORS; 3000 SQ FT SEATING) REQUIRED SETBACKS: FRONT   35' 35' REAR   20' 20' SIDE   PER SITE PLAN APPROVAL PER SITE PLAN APPROVAL EXISTING SETBACKS: FRONT   171.6' 171.6' REAR   204' 204' SIDE   29'/0'  29'/0'  MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT = 30' (2 STORY) EXISTING BUILDING HEIGHT = 23' (1 STORY) PARKING REQUIRED: INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION = 1 SPACE/200 SQ FT (NET) PARKING REQUIRED = 21,000 / 200 = 105 SPACES PARKING PROVIDED = 164 SPACES INCLUDING 8 ADA SPACES) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\PROJECTS\2023\23-0842 BEVERLY HILLS PICKELBALL\DWG\2_SITE_PLAN\(C-1.0) SITE PLAN 230842.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIRTEEN MILE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODPLAIN: BY GRAPHIC PLOTTING, THE SUBJECT PARCEL IS IN "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE OF THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN." (ZONE X) PER FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP PANEL NUMBER 26125C0538F, EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 29, 2006



UP

UP

DN

DN

A

1

B

C

D

2345678910

C1

11121314151617

352'-0"

3
7

'-
1

0
"

3
8

'-
2

"
1

5
'-
7

"
2

2
'-
3

"

1
1

3
'-
1

0
"

22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0" 22'-0"

8'-0"

TYP

10'-0"

TYP

44'-0"

TYP

10'-0"

T
Y

P

8
'-
6

"

T
Y

P

2
0

'-
0

"

TR3

3
0

'-
0

"

26'-11 7/8"

544 SF

PRO SHOP

101

2277 SF

SEATING

104

808 SF

KITCHEN

105

333 SF

WOMENS

106

334 SF

MENS

107

115 SF

CHECK IN

108

127 SF

STORAGE

109

694 SF

VEST

110

5
'-
0

"

28'-1 7/8"

1
9

'-
8

"

LINE OF 

MEZZANINE ABOVE

5
'-
0

"

EXIST ELECT.
ROOM

112

EXIST WATER
ROOM

113

9' HIGH END NET TYP.

4' HIGH SIDE NET TYP

44'-0" 20'-0" 44'-0" 20'-0" 44'-0" 20'-0" 44'-0" 10'-0"

ORIGINAL LINE OF ELECT ROOM

4'-8 5/8"

5
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
6

'-
6

"
6

'-
1

1
 3

/8
"

8
'-
6

"
2

0
'-
0

"
8

'-
6

"
6

'-
1

1
 3

/8
"

6
'-
6

"
2

0
'-
0

"
5

'-
0

"

7'-7 1/2"

PICKLEBALL

COURT #2

PICKLEBALL

COURT #1

PICKLEBALL

COURT #3

PICKLEBALL

COURT #6

PICKLEBALL

COURT #5

PICKLEBALL

COURT #8

PICKLEBALL

COURT #9

PICKLEBALL

COURT #12

PICKLEBALL

COURT #11

PICKLEBALL

COURT #7

PICKLEBALL

COURT #4

PICKLEBALL

COURT #13

30 SF

ELEVATOR

111

PICKLEBALL

COURT #10

1

A3.1

19'-0"

TYP

6'-0" 19'-0"

34094 SF

COURTS

114

2

A3.1

A

1

B

C

D

2345678910

C1

11121314151617

30'-0" 6'-0" 1'-4"

STOREFRONT 

GLAZING 

3
'-
0

"
6

'-
9

 1
/2

"
1

6
'-
0

"
1

6
'-
0

"
1

6
'-
0

"
1

6
'-
0

"
1

6
'-
0

"
9

'-
8

 3
/4

"

A
C

C
E

S
S

 W
A

L
K

W
A

Y

GOLF SIMULATOR

SUITE #3

DRINK RAIL

951 SF

SEATING/
VIEWING

203

GOLF SIMULATOR

SUITE #2

GOLF SIMULATOR

SUITE #1

GOLF SIMULATOR

SUITE #4

GOLF SIMULATOR

SUITE #5

51 SF

TOILET

201

51 SF

TOILET

202

70 SF

OFFICE

200

30 SF

ELEVATOR

209

77 SF

REFRESHMENTS

210

OPEN TO 

BELOW 
1

A3.1

1
6

'-
0

"
1

6
'-
0

"

2

A3.1

A2.1

4

1
'-
2

"
6

'-
8

"
2

7
'-
4

"
6

'-
8

"
1

6
'-
4

"
6

'-
8

"
8

"

THIS DOCUMENT AND THE INFORMATION

CONTAINED THEREIN IS THE SOLE 

POSSESSION OF STUDIO DETROIT AND 

SHALL NOT BE ALTERED OR MODIFIED 

WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN

PERMISSION OF STUDIO DETROIT.  ANY

MODIFICATION OR ALTERATION THEREOF 

SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS 

STUDIO DETROIT OF ALL EXPENSES, CLAIMS 

AND/OR LIABILITY RESULTING FROM SUCH 

MODIFICATIONS OR ALTERATIONS.

©2023 STUDIO DETROIT LLC

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS

2040 PARK AVENUE, SUITE 200

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226

STUDIO-DETROIT.COM

ISSUED

DRAWN

CHECKED

SEAL

CLIENT

PROJECT 

PROJECT MANAGER

2100 E MAPLE RD # 200,

BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN

RECREATION CENTER-
BEVERLY HILLS

-----

A1.1

KJC

ZJR

PROPOSED FLOOR
PLANS - PICKLEBALL

08.31.23 USE CHANGE

31535 SOUTHFIELD RD,

BEVERLY HILLS, MI 48025

NELSON VENTURES

N

1/16" = 1'-0"

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

INDICATES FENCE

ACCESS WALKWAY

ACCESS WALKWAY

N

1/16" = 1'-0"

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

USABLE AREA CALCULATIONS

USE AREA COUNT TOTAL AREA

PICKLE BALL COURTS 1,200 SF EA 13 15,600 SF

GOLF SIMULATOR 480 SF EA 5 2,400 SF

ADDITIONAL SEATING 2,400 SF 1 3,000 SF

TOTAL USABLE AREA 21,000 SF

REQUIRED PARKING CALCULATIONS

INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION - ONE SPACE PER 200 SQ FT OF USEABLE FLOOR AREA

USEABLE AREA / 200 SF = PARKING COUNT 

21,000 SF / 200 SF = 105 SPACES

SPACES REQUIRED: 105

SPACES PROVIDED:  164

PARKING CALCULATIONS 



EXISTING BRICK FACADE TO REMAIN TUCK POINT AND REPAIR AS

NECESSARY; BRICK TO MATCH EXISTING COLOR AND PROFILE

1

EXISTING EIFS TO REMAIN; PATCH AND REPAIR AS NECESSARY2

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEY NOTES:
(TYPICAL THIS SHEET ONLY)

EXISTING GLASS AND ALUMINUM STOREFRONT / CURTAINWALL SYSTEM TO

REMAIN

3

EXISTING W 24 FRAMED STEEL CANOPY / ACCENT TO REMAIN; PRIME AND

PAINT

4

WALL MTD. EXT. LIGHT FIXTURE; SEE SCHEDULE & ELECTRICAL5

EXISTING METAL COPING TO REMAIN6

INDICATES LINE OF ROOF BEYOND7

EXISTING HM DOOR AND FRAME TO REMAIN; PRIME AND PAINT8

EXISTING OH DOOR AND FRAME TO REMAIN9

EXISTING SPLIT FACE CMU SCREENING WALL10

EXISTING SPLIT FACE CMU BASE / BANDING TO REMAIN11

EXISTING EIFS COPING TO REMAIN12

EXISTING BUILDING SIGNAGE; TO BE MODIFIED PER NEW TENANT

REQUIREMENTS AND CITY ORDINANCES

13

EXISTING PAINTED CMU TO REMAIN; PRIME AND PAINT PER NEW TENANT

BRANDING

14

EXISTING TRUCK DOCK TO REMAIN15

EXISTING SPLIT FACE CMU SCREEN WALL TO REMAIN16

EXISTING LIGHTING MOUNTED TO UNDERSIDE OF CANOPY17

EXISTING WALL SCONCE TO REMAIN18

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-0"

T.O. PARAPET

125'-4"

B.O. ROOF DECK

122'-4"

B.O. STRUCTURE

120'-8"

2

A3.1

14

6

16

9
'-
0

"

TYP

18

4

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-0"

T.O. PARAPET

125'-4"

B.O. ROOF DECK

122'-4"

B.O. STRUCTURE

120'-8"

2

A3.1

14

8

12

11 11

3

3 111116

9
'-
0

"

4

44

6

5
'-
0

"

17

15

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-0"

T.O. PARAPET

125'-4"

B.O. ROOF DECK

122'-4"

B.O. STRUCTURE

120'-8"

1

A3.1

3

14

9

8

15

16

4

11

5
'-
0

"

9
'-
0

"

6

11

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-0"

T.O. PARAPET

125'-4"

ABCD C1

B.O. ROOF DECK

122'-4"

B.O. STRUCTURE

120'-8"

1

A3.1

1222 3

TYP

4

12

7

8

11

1111

12

13

3
4

'-
4

"

12

1111

THIS DOCUMENT AND THE INFORMATION

CONTAINED THEREIN IS THE SOLE 

POSSESSION OF STUDIO DETROIT AND 

SHALL NOT BE ALTERED OR MODIFIED 

WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN

PERMISSION OF STUDIO DETROIT.  ANY

MODIFICATION OR ALTERATION THEREOF 

SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS 

STUDIO DETROIT OF ALL EXPENSES, CLAIMS 

AND/OR LIABILITY RESULTING FROM SUCH 

MODIFICATIONS OR ALTERATIONS.

©2023 STUDIO DETROIT LLC

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS

2040 PARK AVENUE, SUITE 200

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226

STUDIO-DETROIT.COM

ISSUED

DRAWN

CHECKED

SEAL

CLIENT

PROJECT 

PROJECT MANAGER

2100 E MAPLE RD # 200,

BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN

RECREATION CENTER-
BEVERLY HILLS

-----

A2.1

KJC

ZJR

EXISTING EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

09.01.23 SITE PLAN REVIEW

31535 SOUTHFIELD RD,

BEVERLY HILLS, MI 48025

NELSON VENTURES

1/16" = 1'-0"

1 EXISTING NORTH ELEVATION

1/16" = 1'-0"

2 EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

3 EXISTING WEST ELEVATION

A1.1 1/8" = 1'-0"

4 EXISTING EAST ELEVATION



EXISTING CONC. SLAB TO REMAIN1

BUILDING SECTION KEY NOTES:
(TYPICAL THIS SHEET ONLY)

EXISTING PAVING / GRADE; SEE CIVIL2

PROPOSED GLASS AND ALUMINUM STOREFRONT; SEE FRAME ELEVATIONS3

NEW GYPSUM BOARD WALL CONSTRUCTION4

EXISTING CMU WALL CONSTRUCTION; PRIME AND PAINT5

EXISTING  GLASS AND ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM TO REMAIN7

PROPOSED METAL PAN STAIR CASE; ATTACHED TO PROPOSED MEZZANINE

COORD w/ STRUCTURE

8

EXISTING STEEL BEAM / JOIST; PRIME AND PAINT9

CONC. SLAB ON GALV. METAL DECK; COORDINATE w/ STRUCTURAL10

EXISTING SINGLE PLY ROOF MEMBRANE ON RIGID INSULATION ON METAL

DECK

12

NEW HM DOOR AND FRAME; PRIME AND PAINT13

EXISTING COILING OH DOOR AND FRAME TO REMAIN15

PROPOSED PICKLEBALL COURT FENCING6

PROPOSED DRINK RAIL11

EXISTING HM DOOR AND FRAME; PRIME AND PAINT14

EXISTING COLUMN TO REMAIN; PRIME AND PAINT COLUMN SURROUND16

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-0"

T.O. PARAPET

125'-4"

SEE STRUCT

B.O. FOUNDATION

123451314151617

B.O. ROOF DECK

122'-4"

B.O. STRUCTURE

120'-8"

KITCHEN

105

SEATING/
VIEWING

203

COURTS

114

4
'-
0

"

9
'-
0

"

10

3

GOLF
SIMULATOR #3

115

TYP

9

TYP

6

TYP

6

TYP

9

8

1112 12

22

5

5

1 1

TYP

16

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-0"

T.O. PARAPET

125'-4"

ABCD C1

B.O. ROOF DECK

122'-4"

B.O. STRUCTURE

120'-8"

1

PRO SHOP

101

SEATING

104

COURTS

114

22

3

4

9
'-
0

"

7

TYP

9

8

12

1413

3
'-
0

"

156

5 5

THIS DOCUMENT AND THE INFORMATION

CONTAINED THEREIN IS THE SOLE 

POSSESSION OF STUDIO DETROIT AND 

SHALL NOT BE ALTERED OR MODIFIED 

WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN

PERMISSION OF STUDIO DETROIT.  ANY

MODIFICATION OR ALTERATION THEREOF 

SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS 

STUDIO DETROIT OF ALL EXPENSES, CLAIMS 

AND/OR LIABILITY RESULTING FROM SUCH 

MODIFICATIONS OR ALTERATIONS.

©2023 STUDIO DETROIT LLC

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS

2040 PARK AVENUE, SUITE 200

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226

STUDIO-DETROIT.COM

ISSUED

DRAWN

CHECKED

SEAL

CLIENT

PROJECT 

PROJECT MANAGER

2100 E MAPLE RD # 200,

BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN

RECREATION CENTER-
BEVERLY HILLS

-----

A3.1

KJC

ZJR

PROPOSED BUILDING
SECTIONS

09.01.23 ZONING CHANGE

31535 SOUTHFIELD RD,

BEVERLY HILLS, MI 48025

NELSON VENTURES

A1.1 1/8" = 1'-0"

1 BUILDING SECTION

A1.1 1/8" = 1'-0"

2 BUILDING SECTION





..
.B

ED
 B

AT
H

 A
N

D
 B

EY
O

N
D

..
.

EX
TE

R
IO

R

Designer
BW
Date
10/6/23
Scale
Not to Scale
Drawing No.
V2

1 of 1

GENERAL LIGHTING NOTES:
- TASK PLANE CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 2' - 6" AFF.
- CORRIDOR CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 2' - 6" AFF.
- EXERIOR CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' - 0" AFG.

THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS CALCULATED FROM LABORATORY DATA
TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ILLUMINATING ENGINEERING
SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S LUMINAIRE MAY
VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER VARIABLE
FIELD CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.8

2.2

2.7

1.6

1.1

1.8

2.4

2.4

1.9

2.1

1.9

2.0

1.4

0.6

0.1

0.8

1.4

1.1

1.3

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.8

1.6

1.7

1.4

3.1

1.5

0.1

0.1

1.6

2.3

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.4

1.3

1.2

3.3

1.7

0.2

0.2

2.0

2.8

2.8

2.3

1.5

2.6

3.8

1.5

1.3

2.6

3.5

1.4

1.7

0.8

0.1

1.6

2.3

2.0

1.9

1.6

2.2

2.3

1.4

1.3

2.5

3.3

1.3

1.6

0.9

0.1

0.6

1.2

0.9

1.1

1.8

1.3

1.1

1.4

1.7

1.4

1.4

1.3

2.9

2.0

0.3

0.1

0.9

1.4

0.9

1.2

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.3

2.8

1.8

0.2

0.1

1.9

2.6

2.5

2.5

1.9

4.7

7.9

1.5

1.0

1.8

3.7

1.5

1.4

0.7

0.1

0.4

2.3

2.8

3.7

3.1

1.8

3.8

6.0

1.5

1.0

1.8

2.4

1.5

0.8

0.2

0.1

0.1

1.4

1.9

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.0

1.3

1.5

1.6

1.4

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.5

1.1

0.9

0.9

1.0

0.6

0.6

0.8

0.5

0.8

1.8

2.7

2.1

0.9

0.2

0.1

1.3

2.1

1.3

1.2

0.9

0.5

1.4

2.2

0.5

0.7

1.9

4.4

4.3

1.4

0.2

0.3

2.3

3.5

5.1

3.8

1.0

0.3

0.1

0.2

1.9

3.4

8.8

4.9

1.0

0.3

0.1

0.1

1.1

2.1

1.7

1.5

1.2

5.4

0.6

0.1

0.1

1.2

2.3

1.7

1.6

1.2

5.5

2.5

0.1

0.2

2.2

3.6

7.8

6.3

1.2

4.5

5.5

0.1

0.2

2.0

3.4

4.3

3.9

1.1

5.6

4.6

0.1

0.1

1.1

2.1

1.3

1.3

1.2

5.4

2.1

0.1

0.1

1.0

2.0

1.2

1.2

1.1

4.0

1.8

0.2

0.2

1.9

3.3

3.1

2.9

0.9

5.2

4.4

0.2

0.2

2.1

3.5

3.3

3.1

0.9

5.6

6.5

0.1

0.1

1.7

2.8

1.1

1.0

0.9

4.5

3.2

0.2

0.2

2.0

2.6

0.8

0.7

0.7

5.1

1.4

0.1

0.4

2.3

2.8

1.3

1.3

1.2

6.0

2.5

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.7

2.7

2.1

4.0

2.7

6.0

5.2

0.1

0.2

1.4

2.2

2.7

3.0

2.4

5.4

4.6

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.9

0.9

1.8

7.1

2.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

2.1

6.9

1.6

0.1

0.2

2.4

5.2

3.8

0.1

0.2

2.4

6.7

6.3

0.1

0.2

2.2

6.5

3.4

0.1

0.2

2.0

5.6

1.0

0.1

0.2

2.2

5.1

0.2

0.2

2.4

5.9

0.2

2.5

1.9

0.7

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.5

1.2

1.4

0.1

0.2

2.6

2.3

1.2

1.0

1.0

0.8

0.8

1.2

2.5

2.0

0.1

0.1

1.4

2.3

3.2

2.5

1.3

1.3

2.0

2.5

2.6

2.0

0.1

0.1

0.7

2.0

4.6

1.4

1.4

3.9

3.0

2.8

2.3

0.1

0.1

0.9

2.2

2.5

2.2

1.8

1.5

1.7

2.1

2.8

2.1

0.1

0.1

1.6

2.6

2.4

2.1

2.0

1.7

1.4

1.9

3.0

2.3

0.1

0.1

1.6

2.7

3.4

3.9

1.7

1.7

2.7

2.7

2.8

2.4

0.1

0.1

1.2

2.5

2.8

2.6

1.8

2.0

4.2

3.5

2.6

1.7

0.1

0.1

1.9

2.7

2.0

2.0

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.0

2.2

0.1

0.1

1.8

2.1

2.3

2.5

2.7

2.4

2.1

2.5

2.1

1.7

0.1

0.5

1.2

2.2

1.2

0.5

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.5

1.9

0.9

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9.6

B @ 12' B @ 12'

B @ 12'

B @ 12'

B @ 12'B @ 12'B @ 12'

B @ 12'

B @ 12'

B @ 12'

B @ 12'

B @ 12'B @ 12'

B @ 12'

B @ 12'

E @ 12'E @ 12'

E @ 12'

E @ 12'

D @ 12'

D @ 12'

F @ 12' F @ 12'F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12'F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12'F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12'F @ 12'F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12'F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12' F @ 12'
A1 @ 14'

A1 @ 14'A1 @ 14'A1 @ 14'A1 @ 14'

A1 @ 14'

A1 @ 14'

A1 @ 14'A1 @ 14'A1 @ 14'A1 @ 14'

A1 @ 14'

A1 @ 14'

A1 @ 14'

A1 @ 14'

C1 @ 12'C1 @ 12'C1 @ 12'C1 @ 12'C1 @ 12'C1 @ 12'

C1 @ 12'

A1 @ 14' A1 @ 14'

C1 @ 12' C1 @ 12'
D1 @ 12' D1 @ 12' D1 @ 12' D1 @ 12'

Plan View
Scale - 1" = 30ft

Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Description

17 LITHONIA EXISTING 250W TYPE 4 SHOEBOX W/ LED LAMP AND
BACKLIGHT SHIELD PROVIDED AND INSTALLED BY
CONTRACTOR

RETROFIT WITH PHILIPS 564187 LAMP

15 LITHONIA EXISTING 250W TYPE5 SHOEBOX (DOUBLE) W/ LED LAMP SAME AS TYPE A1

9 LITHONIA EXISTING 250W TYPE3 SHOEBOX W/ LED LAMP AND
BACKLIGHT SHIELD PROVDED AND INSTALLED BY
CONTRACTOR

SAME AS TYPE A1

2 LITHONIA EXISTING 250W FORWARD THROW WALLPACK REMOVE

4 STONCO LPW3270NWG32UNVPCBBK (NEW WALLPACK) NEW LED WALLPACK

4 LITHONIA EXISTING 400W FLAG FLOOD W/ LED LAMP SAME AS TYPE A1

27 LITHONIA EXISTING 100W DOWNLIGHT W/ LED LAMP RETROFIT WITH PHILIPS 545897 LAMP

1. CONTRACTOR MUST PURCHASE ONE OF EACH LAMP TYPE AND TEST TO MAKE
SURE THEY INSTALL PROPERLY INTO THE EXISTING FIXTURES!!!

2. IES files arent available for existing fixtures, used LED versions of the fixture
for photometric plan.



REVISIONS

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY
APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

NORTH

0 15 30 60

SCALE: 1" = 30'

PROJECT TITLE

CLIENT

INDOOR
RECREATION
CENTER
31535 SOUTHFIELD ROAD
BEVERLY HILLS, MICHIGAN

NELSON
VENTURES,
LLC
1401 EAST MAPLE ROAD, SUITE B
SOUTHFIELD, MICHIGAN 48084

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:
SEPTEMBER 05, 2023

DRAWING TITLE

SITE PLAN

DRAWING NUMBER:

C-1.0

PEA JOB NO.

DN.

P.M.

JPB

JPB

DES. JPB

23-0842

www.peagroup.com
t: 844.813.2949

PER PC APPROVAL     10-04-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER (TYPICAL) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER (TYPICAL) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE 1.0' S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD WIRES & UNDERGROUND PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY HILLS CLUB #31555 SOUTHFIELD RD. 1 STORY BRICK/BLOCK BLDG PARCEL ID 24-02-427-008 OWNER: BEVERLY HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY HILLS GRILL #31471 SOUTHFIELD RD. 1 STORY BRICK/BLOCK BLDG PARCEL ID 24-02-427-012 OWNER: BHG PROPERTIES, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNTLY SQUARE APARTMENTS #31065 HUNTLY SQ. W.. 1 STORY BRICK/BLOCK BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-480-006

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE CORNER SECTION 2 T.1N., R.10E. VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN FND REMON CAP IN MON BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E 1/4 CORNER SECTION 2 T.1N., R.10E. VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN FND REMON CAP IN MON BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17 CRYSTAL SPRINGS  L. 20 OF PLATS, PAGE 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87 27'00"W   306.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87 27'00"W   427.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01 10'00"E   215.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86 49'14"E   734.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01 10'00"W 65.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 86 49'14" W 60.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE SECTION 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE (ON PROPERTY LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE 1.2' N

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE 0.5' N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
114.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
355.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
283.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY SCHOOL CRYSTAL SPRINGS LOT 9 PARCEL ID 24-02-426-001 OWNER: SCHOOL DISTRICT CITY OF  BIRMINGHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENNIS COURT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT ON BUILDING (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUCK DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-427-009

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-427-009

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-427-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID 24-02-427-011

AutoCAD SHX Text
35 FT. FRONT SETBACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 FT. REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT D HUNTLY SQUARE SUB'N RECORDED L.116, P.18&19 (OCR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHFIELD ROAD ROW 60 FEET WIDE (  WIDTH) 12 WIDTH) 2 NB LANES - 2 SB LANES 1 TURN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
31535 SOUTHFIELD ROAD 1 STORY BRICK/BLOCK BLDG BUILDING HEIGHT = 23.0'  40,592 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC (EXCEPTION 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/8"GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINED PROPERTY 134853 SQ. FT. - 3.096 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT CENTERLINE L.4341, P.376

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01 10'00"W 1071.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING HEIGHT 23.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01 10'00"W   141.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING RM-MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 FT. BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING B-BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING PP-PUBLIC PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING B-BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING B-BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDICATES NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES PER AISLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LIGHT POLE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9' WIDE x 20' LONG TYPICAL REGULAR PARKING SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND SIGN LOCATION (2'-8" x 5'-9")

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER STRUCTURE (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRASH  DUMPSTER LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MASONRY WALL TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DUMPSTER GATE TO BE CONSTRUCTED OF 1" X 6" CEDAR ON 2" X 6" PRESSURE TREATED FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIX OR REPLACE EXISTING LIGHT POLE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIX OR REPLACE EXISTING LIGHT POLE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRASS PLUG SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST INDICATOR VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX, TRANSFORMER, IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE BOX/HYDRANT VALVE BOX, SERVICE SHUTOFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND CABLE TV, CATV PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text
670

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS BUILT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET (NO INCOMING LINES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINED SEWER & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER, CLEANOUT & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER, CLEANOUT & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN, HYD., GATE VALVE, TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MAIN, VALVE & GAS LINE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC U.G. CABLE, MANHOLE, METER & HANDHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE U.G. CABLE, PEDESTAL & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC., PHONE OR CABLE TV O.H. LINE, POLE & GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAIL FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG NAIL SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. CORNER FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARD DRAIN (2' DIA. & SMALLER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIDENTIFIED STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
816.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
(816.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION Per Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Commitment No. A0768447, Commitment Date May 11, 2021 Land situated in the Village of Beverly Hills, County of Oakland and the State of Michigan, described as follows: Lot 17, except the East 334. 00 feet of the South 65.00 feet and also except the East 27.00 feet taken for widening of Southfield Road, of Crystal Springs Subdivision, on North 1/2 of Southeast 1/4 of Section 2, Town 1 North, Range 10 East, City of Southfield, Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 20 of Plats, Page 32, Oakland County Records, and described as: Beginning on the Westerly line of Southfield Road, as now established at a point distant South 01 deg. 10' 00" West, 1071.63 feet along the East line of Section 2 and North 86 deg. 49' 14" West, 60.03 feet from the East 1/4 corner of said Section 2; thence along the Westerly line of said Southfield Road, South 01 deg. 10' 00" West, 141.93 feet; thence along the Northerly line of the East 334.00 feet of the South 65.00 feet of said Lot 17, North 87 deg. 27' 00" West 306.99 feet; thence along the Westerly line of said East 334.00 feet to the South 65.00 feet of Lot 17, South 01 deg.10' 00" West, 65.00 feet; thence along the Southerly line of said Lot 17, being also the Northerly line of Huntley Square Subdivision, as recorded in Liber 116, Page 18 of Plats, Oakland County Records, North 87 deg. 27' 00" West, 427.00 feet to the Southwest corner of said Lot 17; thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 17, North 01 deg. 10' 00" East 215.00 feet to the Northwesterly corner of said Lot 17; thence along the Northerly line of said Lot 17; South 86 deg. 49' 14" East, 734.23 feet to the point of beginning.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA TABLE: SITE AREA = 134,853 SQ FT (3.096 ACRES) ZONED B (BUSINESS) GROSS BUILDING AREA = 40,592 SQ F 40,592 SQ F NET BUILDING AREA =  21,000 SQ FT 21,000 SQ FT (15,600 SQ FT COURTS; 2400 SQ FT GOLF SIMULATORS; 3000 SQ FT SEATING) REQUIRED SETBACKS: FRONT   35' 35' REAR   20' 20' SIDE   PER SITE PLAN APPROVAL PER SITE PLAN APPROVAL EXISTING SETBACKS: FRONT   171.6' 171.6' REAR   204' 204' SIDE   29'/0'  29'/0'  MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT = 30' (2 STORY) EXISTING BUILDING HEIGHT = 23' (1 STORY) PARKING REQUIRED: INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION = 1 SPACE/200 SQ FT (NET) PARKING REQUIRED = 21,000 / 200 = 105 SPACES PARKING PROVIDED = 164 SPACES INCLUDING 8 ADA SPACES) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\PROJECTS\2023\23-0842 BEVERLY HILLS PICKELBALL\DWG\2_SITE_PLAN\(C-1.0) SITE PLAN 230842.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIRTEEN MILE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEVERLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODPLAIN: BY GRAPHIC PLOTTING, THE SUBJECT PARCEL IS IN "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE OF THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN." (ZONE X) PER FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP PANEL NUMBER 26125C0538F, EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 29, 2006

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. UPON COMPLETION OF THE BUILDING RENOVATIONS, AND AS WEATHER PERMITS, UPON COMPLETION OF THE BUILDING RENOVATIONS, AND AS WEATHER PERMITS, THE PARKING AREA WILL BE SEAL COATED AND RESTRIPED PER ZONING ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS. 2. THE EXISTING LIGHT LEVELS ALONG RESIDENTIAL ZONED PROPERTIES (HUNTLY THE EXISTING LIGHT LEVELS ALONG RESIDENTIAL ZONED PROPERTIES (HUNTLY SQUARE APARTMENTS) LOCATED SOUTH OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT WILL BE EVALUATED AND ADJUSTED AS NECESSARY TO MEET THE CURRENT VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS LIGHTING STANDARDS SPECIFICALLY. SECTION 22.09.050 (b) WHERE A MAXIMUM OF ONLY 0.5 FOOTCANDLES AT THE PROPERTY LINE IS PERMITTED 3. ANY EXISTING PLANTS DETERMINED TO BE IN POOR HEALTH WILL BE REPLACED.  ANY EXISTING PLANTS DETERMINED TO BE IN POOR HEALTH WILL BE REPLACED.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE GATE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CLEARANCE TO SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATCH, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL 1" DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUTY HINGES, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD POSTS BY HEAVY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATES CONNECTED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" x 6" PRESSURE TREATED (ACQ) #2 CEDAR ON 2" x 6" PRESSURE TREATED (ACQ) FRAME. STAIN TO MATCH ARCHITECTURAL MASONRY ON BUILDING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DIA. CONC. FILLED STEEL GUARD POST. W/CONC. FOOTING.  HEIGHT TO BE 6" ABOVE TOP HINGE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHT TO BE 6" ABOVE TOP HINGE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SCREEN WALL



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Village Council President and Council Members 

From:  Village Manager 

Date: October 13, 2023  

Re: Village’s Liability Insurance Policy   

On the agenda for Council to review and consider is the renewal of the Village’s Liability Insurance 
Policy. This policy renews on November 1 of this year. 

 

The terms of this policy are the same as the current policy: A self-insured retention of $75,000 for liability 
and, for vehicle and physical damage a self-insured retention of $15,000 per vehicle and $30,000 per 
occurrence. The liability limit is $10,000,000 with various other limits listed on page 3. There is also a stop 
loss policy that would limit all liability in any village fiscal year to $150,000. The cost for retaining this 
stop-loss policy is $5,050. The stop-loss policy is detailed on page 8. 

 

The total cost for the liability policy for one year is $143,457.  This is a slight increase over last year’s 
premium of $140,158.  The total premium, stop loss cost, and retention fund contribution for this year is 
$188,507.  This is slightly up from $185,074 last year or just under a 2% increase.   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Be it resolved that the Beverly Hills Village Council approve and authorize the Village Manager to 
sign the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority Liability and Property Insurance renewal 
effective November 1, 2023 through November 1, 2024 in the amount of $188,507.00. Funds for 
these expenditures are available in accounts 101.248.935.00, 205.345.935.00, 592.540.935.00. 

 

 

B1 



MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
COVERAGE PROPOSAL

Member:

Date of Original Membership:

Proposal Effective Dates:

Member Representative:

Regional Risk Manager:

Village of Beverly Hills

November 1, 2000

November 01, 2023 To November 01, 2024

Jeffrey Campbell

Ibex Insurance Services

Proposal No: Q000014210

Telephone #:

Telephone #:

(248) 646-6404

(248) 538-0470

A. Introduction

The Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (hereinafter "MMRMA") is created by authority granted by the laws
of the State of Michigan to provide risk financing and risk management services to eligible Michigan local governments.
MMRMA is a separate legal and administrative entity as permitted by Michigan laws. Village of Beverly Hills
(hereinafter "Member") is eligible to be a Member of MMRMA. Village of Beverly Hills agrees to be a Member of
MMRMA and to avail itself of the benefits of membership.

Village of Beverly Hills is aware of and agrees that it will be bound by all of the provisions of the Joint Powers
Agreement, Coverage Documents, MMRMA rules, regulations, and administrative procedures.

This Coverage Proposal summarizes certain obligations of MMRMA and the Member. Except for specific coverage
limits, attached addenda, and the Member's Self Insured Retention (SIR) and deductibles contained in this Coverage
Proposal, the provisions of the Joint Powers Agreement, Coverage Documents, reinsurance agreements, MMRMA
rules, regulations, and administrative procedures shall prevail in any dispute. The Member agrees that any dispute
between the Member and MMRMA will be resolved in the manner stated in the Joint Powers Agreement and MMRMA
rules.

B. Member Obligation - Deductibles and Self Insured Retentions

Village of Beverly Hills is responsible to pay all costs, including damages, indemnification, and allocated loss
adjustment expenses for each occurrence that is within the Member's Self Insured Retention (hereinafter the "SIR").
Village of Beverly Hills's SIR and deductibles are as follows:

Village of Beverly HillsPage 1 of 811/1/23 To 11/1/24



Sewage System Overflow

Property and Crime

Vehicle Physical Damage

Liability

N/A

$15,000 Per Vehicle
$30,000 Per Occurrence

Table I

Member Deductibles and Self Insured Retentions

COVERAGE DEDUCTIBLE SELF INSURED
RETENTION

N/A

$1,000 Per Vehicle

$1,000 Per Occurrence

N/A

$75,000 Per Occurrence

$75,000 Per Occurrence

The member must satisfy all deductibles before any payments are made from the Member's SIR or by MMRMA.

The Village of Beverly Hills is afforded all coverages provided by MMRMA, except as listed below:

All costs including damages and allocated loss adjustment expenses are on an occurrence basis and must be paid first
from the Member's SIR. The Member's SIR and deductibles must be satisfied fully before MMRMA will be responsible
for any payments. The most MMRMA will pay is the difference between the Member's SIR and the Limits of Coverage
stated in the Coverage Overview.

Village of Beverly Hills agrees to maintain the Required Minimum Balance as defined in the Member Financial
Responsibilities section of the MMRMA Governance Manual. The Member agrees to abide by all MMRMA rules,
regulations, and administrative procedures pertaining to the Member's SIR.

C. MMRMA Obligations - Payments and Limits of Coverage

After the Member's SIR and deductibles have been satisfied, MMRMA will be responsible for paying all remaining
costs, including damages, indemnification, and allocated loss adjustment expenses to the Limits of Coverage stated in
Table II. The Limits of Coverage include the Member's SIR payments.

The most MMRMA will pay, under any circumstances, which includes payments from the Member's SIR, per
occurrence, is shown in the Limits of Coverage column in Table II. The Limits of Coverage includes allocated loss
adjustment expenses.

Fire/EMS Replacement Cost $1,000 Per Occurrence N/A

Member's Motor Vehicle Physical Damage deductible applies, unless the amount of the loss exceeds the deductible. If
the amount of loss exceeds the deductible, the loss including deductible amount, will be paid by MMRMA, subject to
the Member's SIR.

1. Specialized Emergency Response Expense Recovery Coverage

2.

3.

4.

Village of Beverly HillsPage 2 of 811/1/23 To 11/1/24



All Members All MembersMember

2,000 per week

Member

Annual Aggregate

Limits of Coverage Per Occurrence Annual Aggregate

N/A N/A1 Liability 10,000,000

Table II

Limits of Coverage

Liability and Motor Vehicle Physical Damage

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Judicial Tenure

Sewage System Overflows

Volunteer Medical Payments

First Aid

Vehicle Physical Damage

Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Coverage
(per person)

Michigan No-Fault

Terrorism

Member All Members All MembersMember

N/A

500,000

25,000

2,000

1,500,000

100,000

250,000

Per Statute

5,000,000

Property and Crime

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Buildings and Personal Property

Personal Property in Transit

Unreported Property

Member's Newly Acquired or Constructed Property

Fine Arts

Debris Removal (25% of Insured direct loss plus)

Money and Securities

Accounts Receivable
Fire Protection Vehicles, Emergency Vehicles, and
Mobile Equipment (Per Unit)

Limits of Coverage Per Occurrence

9,372,360

2,000,000

5,000,000

10,000,000

2,000,000

25,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

5,000,000

10

11

14

15

16

17

18

20

21

22

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

500,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

5,000,000

Fire and Emergency Vehicle Rental (12 week limit)

Structures Other Than a Building

Storm or Sanitary Sewer Back-Up

Marine Property

Other Covered Property

Income and Extra Expense

Blanket Employee Fidelity

Earthquake

Flood

Terrorism

15,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

10,000

5,000,000

1,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

50,000,000

350,000,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

10,000,000

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

50,000,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

5,000,000

5,000,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

100,000,000

100,000,000

N/A

Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Coverage
(per occurrence)

19 Faithful Performance Per Statute N/A N/A N/A

12 Dam/Dam Structures/Lake Level Controls 250,000 N/A N/A N/A

13 Transformers 0 N/A N/A N/A

Village of Beverly HillsPage 3 of 811/1/23 To 11/1/24



Table III

Network and Information Security Liability, Media Injury Liability, Network Security Loss, Breach Mitigation
Expense, PCI Assessments, Social Engineering Loss, Reward Coverage, Telecommunications Fraud
Reimbursement, Extortion.

Limits of Coverage Per
Occurrence/Claim

$2,000,000

Deductible Per
Occurrence/Claim Retroactive Date

Nework and
Information Security

Liability:
Regulatory Fines:

Coverage A
Each Claim

Included in limit above

Each Claim
Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Claim

Media Injury Liability

Coverage B Each Claim
Included in limit above $25,000 Each Claim

Network Security Loss

Network Security
Business Interruption

Loss:

Coverage C Each Unauthorized Access
Included in limit above

Each Business Interruption
Loss

Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Unauthorized
Access

Retention Period of
72 hours of Business

Interruptoin Loss

Coverage D

Breach Mitigation
Expense:

Each Unintentional Data
Compromise

Included in limit above
$25,000 Each Unintentional

Data Compromise

Coverage E

PCI Assessments:

Each Payment Card Breach
$1,000,000 Occ./$1,000,000

Agg.
Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Payment Card
Breach

Social Engineering
Loss:

Coverage F Each Social Engineering
Incident

$100,000 Occ./$100,000 Agg
Included in limit above

$25,000
Each Social

Engineering Incident

Coverage G

Reward Coverage

Maximum of 50% of the
Covered Claim or Loss; up

to $25,000
Included in Limit above

Not Applicable

Coverage H

Telecommunications
Fraud Reimbursement

$25,000
Included in limit above Not Applicable

Occurrence

Occurrence

Occurrence

Occurrence

Occurrence

Occurrence

7/1/2013

7/1/2013

Extortion Coverage

Coverage I Each Claim
Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Extortion Loss Occurrence

Village of Beverly HillsPage 4 of 811/1/23 To 11/1/24



Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability

Each Member Aggregate All Members Aggregate

$2,000,000 $17,500,000

The Each Member Aggregate Limit of Liability for the combined total of all coverage payments of MMRMA and
MCCRMA shall not exceed $2,000,000 per Member for all Subjects of Coverage in any Coverage Period,
regardless of the number of coverage events.

The All Member Aggregate Limit of Liability for the combined total of all coverage payments of MMRMA and
MCCRMA shall not exceed $17,500,000 for All Members for all Subjects of Coverage in any Coverage Period,
regardless of the number of Members or the number of coverage events.

It is the intent of MMRMA that the coverage afforded under the Subjects of Coverage be mutually exclusive.If
however, it is determined that more than one Subject of Coverage applies to one coverage event ensuing from a
common nexus of fact, circumstance, situation, event, transaction, or cause, then the largest of the applicable
Deductibles for the Subjects of Coverage will apply.

Village of Beverly HillsPage 5 of 811/1/23 To 11/1/24



Table V

Table IV

Specialized Emergency Response Expense Recovery Coverage

Limits of Coverage

Specialized Emergency Response
Expense Recovery

Limits of Coverage per Occurrence Annual Aggregate

Member All Members Member All Members

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Specialized Emergency Response Expense Recovery Coverage

Deductibles

Specialized Emergency Response
Expense Recovery

Deductible per Occurrence

Member

N/A

Village of Beverly HillsPage 6 of 811/1/23 To 11/1/24



D. Contribution for MMRMA Participation

Period:

Coverages per Member Coverage Overview: $143,457

TOTAL ANNUAL CONTRIBUTIONS: $188,507

Village of Beverly Hills

November 01,
2023

To November 01, 2024

Stop Loss Coverage:

Member Loss Fund Deposit:

$5,050

$40,000

E. List of Addenda
1. Stop Loss Program Participation Agreement

This document is for the purpose of quotation only and does not bind coverage in the Michigan Municipal Risk
Management Authority, unless accepted and signed by both the authorized Member Representative and MMRMA
Representative below.

Accepted By:

Member Representative

Date

MMRMA Representative

Date

MMRMAVillage of Beverly Hills

Proposal No:

Q000014210

Village of Beverly HillsPage 7 of 811/1/23 To 11/1/24

10-11-2023



ADDENDUM

STOP LOSS PROGRAM
PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

Optional

The Stop Loss Program limits the Member's cash payments during a July 1 - June 30 year for
those costs falling within the Member's SIR.  The Stop Loss Program responds only to
cumulative Member SIR payments, including damages, indemnification, and allocated loss
adjustment expenses, within a July 1 - June 30 calendar year.  The paid costs include payments
for any coverage provided to the Member by MMRMA provided that the costs are actually paid
within the July 1 - June 30 period.  On July 1 of each year, the Member's paid costs accumulate
from zero.

If the Member has chosen to participate in the Stop Loss Program, and if the Member's paid
costs exceed the member's entry point, the Stop Loss Program will pay, until July 1, all costs that
would, in the absence of the Stop Loss Program, be paid from the Member's SIR. Village of
Beverly Hills's entry point is $150,000.  Withdrawing Members do not participate in the Stop
Loss Program after the date of withdrawal.

The Member agrees to be bound by MMRMA rules relating to the Stop Loss Program.

Accepted by:

_______________________________________
Member Representative

Date:___________________________________

MMRMA

________________________________________
Authorized Representative

Date: ___________________________________

Village of Beverly HillsPage 8 of 811/1/23 To 11/1/24

10-11-2023



Community:
Renewal period:

Total Contribution Property Totals Stop Loss
$185,074 $6,754,713 $150,000
$188,507 $8,372,360 $150,000

$3,433 $1,617,647 $0
1.9% 23.9% 0.0%

RAP Grants:
Approved Issued Description Amount Comments

5/11/06 6/8/09 Ready Buckle System $500 $125 each

5/28/08 3/27/12 In Car Cameras $13,000
50% up to $10K (new) & 
1/3 up to $3K (replace)

3/14/12 Tasers $4,000 50% up to $4,000
3/17/15 8/17/15 Digital Camera & Security $11,660 50% up to $11,660
3/17/15 5/1/15 In Car Cameras $9,000 1/3 up to $9,000

11/13/17 3/30/18 Tasers $5,000 $500/unit up to $5,000
3/15/19 5/10/19 Bumper Guard Project $305 50% up to $304.55
5/14/19 6/10/19 NFPA Fire Inspector $1,950 75% up t $1,950
3/6/20 4/15/20 Staff & Command Project $4,875 75% up to $4,875
6/1/21 7/30/21 Body Worn & In Car Cameras $13,500 $13,500 

5/18/23 7/17/23 Digital Camera & Security $29,520 50% up to $29,977.26

$95,809

2006 MMRMA Distribution:  $3,519
2007 MMRMA Distribution: $8,064
2008 MMRMA Distribution: $25,253
2010 MMRMA Distribution: $15,804
2011 MMRMA Distribution: $32,188
2012 MMRMA Distribution:  $49,026
2013 MMRMA Distribution: $15,626
2014 MMRMA Distribution: $38,113
2015 MMRMA Distribution: $54,745
2016 MMRMA Distribution: $69,179
2017 MMRMA Distribution: $58,720
2018 MMRMA Distribution: $85,057
2019 MMRMA Distribution: $89,819
2020 MMRMA Distribution: $112,154
2021 MMRMA Distribution: $82,184
2022 MMRMA Distribution: $110,816
2023 MMRMA Distribution: $79,851

$930,118

Last Year 
This Year
Total Change
% Change (+ -)

Village of Beverly Hills
Nov. 1, 2023 to Nov. 1, 2024



B2 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Annual Next Contract 
 
Date:   October 12, 2023 
 
Next is a non-profit organization that works to identify and meet the needs of older adults by coordinating 
community resources to provide education, recreational and social programs. Next provides supportive 
outreach services and volunteer opportunities to seniors in the Village of Beverly Hills and greater 
Birmingham School District community. The Village of Beverly Hills does not provide the services provided 
by Next on its own.  
 
Next has provided a contract for services for the period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. Next initially 
requested $47,712.00 from the Village, which is an increase of roughly $4,300 from last year. During 
budget discussions earlier this year, Administration and Council discussed providing an additional $4,000 
to help mitigate expenses that Next incurs for Yard Services (lawn mowing and snow plowing) that go 
above the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding provided. The total amount of 
$51,712.00 was included in the Village’s annual budget. The annual contract and funding request are 
included for your review. The contract has also been reviewed by the Village Attorney.  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council approves and authorizes Administration to execute the 
annual contact with Next for senior services in the amount of $51,712.00 for Fiscal Year 23-24. Funds for 
these services are available in account #101-693-891.00. 
 
 
Attachments 



1 

CONTRACT FOR SENIOR SERVICES 

NEXT 

 

Agreement made and entered into this _____ day of ____, 2023 by and between 

the Village of Beverly Hills, a Michigan village corporation of the County of Oakland, 

State of Michigan, 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, Michigan 48025 (hereinafter 

“the Village”) and Next, a Michigan nonprofit corporation, 2121 Midvale, Birmingham, 

Michigan 48009. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Village has determined that there is a need for certain services to 

be provided to identify and meet the needs of older adults and coordinate community 

resources to provide educational, recreational and social programs; supportive outreach 

services; and volunteer opportunities for senior members of our community, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Village has determined that it is impractical at this time to 

directly furnish such services utilizing Village personnel and facilities, and 

 

 WHEREAS, Next was established in 1978 to provide such services, and continues 

to provide such services with the support and cooperation of the Birmingham Public 

Schools, City of Birmingham, Village of Franklin and Village of Bingham Farms, and 

 

 WHEREAS, Next is willing to furnish such services for the Village and the 

Village is willing to contribute funds for the support of such services, 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants 

contained herein, the Village and Next agree as follows: 

 

1. Next agrees to furnish to the residents of the Village of Beverly Hills (as well 

as residents of other communities within the Birmingham Public School 

District) services and programs, which, by way of illustration, currently 

include the following: 

 

a. Home delivered meals 

b. Transportation – Areas covered: Beverly Hills, Bingham Farms, 

 Birmingham and Franklin 

c. Health screenings and information 

d. Yard services 

e. Home repair 

f. Income tax preparations 

g. Legal counseling 

h. Medicare information 

i. Durable medical equipment loans 

j. Nutritional supplement program 

k. Various support groups 

l. Enrichment classes 

m. Sports and fitness programs 



2 

n. Social activities 

o. Travel opportunities 

p. Recreational and wellness programs 

 

2. For such services and programs, the Village agrees to pay the sum of 

$51,712.00 Dollars to Next for the July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 Fiscal Year. 

 

3. Next will furnish the Village, and the members of the Village’s Council, with 

copies of its Annual Report. 

 

4. This Agreement shall automatically renew each Fiscal Year, with the amount 

of the annual contract by the Village to be determined each year by the 

Village of Beverly Hills Council, unless either party notifies the other in 

writing at least 60 days prior to the anniversary date that it desires to modify 

or terminate this Agreement. 

 

5. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding between the Village and 

Next, and cannot be changed except by a writing signed by both the Village 

and Next.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding 

upon, the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  

Next may not assign this Agreement without the Village’s prior written 

consent.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws 

of the State of Michigan.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be 

invalid or unenforceable, the validity and enforceability of the remaining 

provisions shall not in any way be affected thereby. 

 

 

Village of Beverly Hills 

 

 

By:_________________________ 

 Jeffrey Campbell 

 

Its:       Village Manager________ 

 

 

Next 

 

By:_________________________ 

 Cris Braun 

 

Its:___Executive Director_______ 

   



  

 

Proudly Serving the 50+ population of Birmingham, Bingham Farms, Beverly Hills, Franklin and surrounding areas. 
 

2121 Midvale St., Birmingham, MI 

48009 

www.BirminghamNext.org 

Cris Braun  
Executive Director  
CBraun@birmingham.k12.mi.us 
248.203.5270 
 

Your Place to Stay Active & Connected  
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Jeffrey Campbell                                                                                                    February 2, 2023 
Village Manager  
The Village of Beverly Hills 
18500 West 13 Mile Road 
Beverly Hills, MI 48025 
 
Dear Mr. Campbell,  
 
Next would like to thank the Village of Beverly Hills for your continued support. Next continues 
to grow and thrive, but of course, there are challenges as well.  
 
Not only is Next working to adequately serve the diverse needs of our community right now, 
we are also planning how to best serve our residents in the coming years. Currently, Next serves 
over 2,200 members with a wide variety of opportunities for socialization, enrichment, and life-
long learning, as well as health and wellness presentations, fitness classes and creative arts. We 
also serve several hundred additional non-member residents through our Support Service 
Department where we provide Meals on Wheels, SMART transportation, offer home and yard 
maintenance, and provide referrals and information that allow seniors to remain safely in their 
homes.  
 
As Next continues to care for our senior residents, we know the demand for critical resources 
will continue to grow and costs will continue to rise.  Forecasting for the new fiscal year, we 
would like to respectfully ask the Village of Beverly Hills to slightly increase its current level of 
financial support from $43,375.00 to $47,712.00 to help mitigate the expenses Next incurs 
above the CDBG funding provided.  With this support, we will be better positioned to meet the 
increasing needs of Beverly residents with uninterrupted services and stimulating programs 
while ensuring accessibility to all that want to participate.       
 
We know our success depends on community partners like Beverly. We are grateful for your 
continued guidance, and your confidence in Next to deliver the programs and services your 
residents require to retain an engaged, healthy and independent lifestyle.  
 
Thank you for your consideration,  
 
 
 
Cris Braun  
 



B3 

 

 

To: Honorable Council President George and Village Council Members 

From: Jeff Campbell, Village Manager 

Re: AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND DISTRIBUTION BETWEEN 

OAKLAND COUNTY AND THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS    

 

Date: October 11, 2023 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Oakland County entered into the Agreement for Local Fiscal Recovery Distribution in April of 2023, after 

Council approved the Agreement in 2022.  Subsequently, the County has submitted an amendment to the 

Agreement for the Council’s review and consideration.   

As you may recall, local governments could receive up to $100,000 in one to one (1:1) matching grant 

funds for critical infrastructure. The grant funding is coming from American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 

awarded to Oakland County.  Grant funding was approved for the decision support planning tool, the 

basement backup protection program planning, sanitary sewer planning, and water line verifications.  

Currently, the Village’s Engineering Consultant is working on the decision support planning tool and 

completing the water line verifications. We will discuss the sewer planning and backup planning at a 

November Council meeting. 

The original Interlocal Agreement and the proposed Amendments are attached for your review and 

consideration.  The only additional requirement for the Village is to provide quarterly progress reports on 

the grant.  The attached form that the Village must submit for updates is attached for reference. 

Suggested Resolution 

Be it so resolved that the Beverly Hills Village Council approve and authorize the Village Manager to 

execute the Proposed Amendment Interlocal Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Distribution Agreement between 

Oakland County and the Village of Beverly Hills as submitted. 

    



 

 

AGREEMENT FOR LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND DISTRIBUTION BETWEEN 
OAKLAND COUNTY AND 
Village of Beverly Hills 

 
Amendment 1 

 
 

The Parties agree to amend the AGREEMENT FOR LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND DISTRIBUTION 
BETWEEN OAKLAND COUNTY AND the Village of Beverly Hills (“Agreement”) as follows: 

 
1. The following sentence will be added to the end of the first paragraph on the first page of the 

Agreement: “Notwithstanding any language to the contrary in the Agreement, Public Body is a 
grantee of the funds it received under the Agreement.  Public Body shall comply with all 
requirements in the Agreement regardless of its classification as a grantee.” 
 

2. Paragraph 5.f. under PUBLIC BODY AFFIRMATIONS will be deleted. 
 

3. Paragraph 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS will be modified to add subparagraph f. which states, 
“Public Body must comply with 2 C.F.R. Part D, Post Federal Award Requirements, being 200.300 
et seq., where applicable.” 
 

4. This Amendment will be effective on _______________. 
 

5. All contractual provisions of the Agreement not otherwise affected by this Amendment shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual assurances, promises, acknowledgments, set forth in this 
Amendment 1 and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the undersigned hereby execute this Amendment 1 on behalf of the Parties, and by doing 
so legally obligate and bind the Parties to the terms and conditions of this Amendment 1. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, that Jeff Campbell, Village Manager, hereby acknowledges that he/she has been 
authorized by a resolution of the Village of Beverly Hills, a certified copy of which is attached, to 
execute this Amendment on behalf of Public Body and hereby accepts and binds Public Body to the 
terms and conditions of this Amendment. 

 

EXECUTED: ____________________________________ DATE: _______________ 

        Jeff Campbell, Village Manager on  

        on behalf of the Village of Beverly Hills 

  

 

WITNESSED: ___________________________________ DATE: _______________ 

 Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk 

 



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, David Woodward, Chairperson, Oakland County Board of Commissioners, 
hereby acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners to execute this Amendment on behalf of Oakland County, and hereby accepts and 
binds Oakland County to the terms and conditions of this Amendment. 

 

EXECUTED: ____________________________________ DATE: _______________ 

 David Woodward, Chairperson 

 Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

 

WITNESSED: ___________________________________ DATE: _______________ 

 Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

 County of Oakland 

 
 



CVT Grant Reporting Template 

This report is due quarterly and then upon completion of the project.   

Submit to: 

Program Manager 
 Dan Klein Mobile: (248) 705-5521 

Email:    kleind@OakGov.com 
   

CVT Name: 

Grant Amount: 

Description of Project: (if modified from application) 

 

Project Implementation: Project is (check one)  ___not started  ___ less than half-way completed 

____more than half-way but not completed  ___ completed 

What has been accomplished since the last report? 

 

Once project is completed, please answer the following questions: 

Project Completion Date: 

How did the completion of the project meet your infrastructure goals and the needs of your 
community? Were there any specific equity needs met? 

 

If these funds had not been available, how would the work have been funded? 

 

Anything else you want to add? 

 

 

Prepared by: ________________________________________ 

Position:____________________________________________ 

Best way to contact:__________________________________ 

Date:______________________________________________ 

 

 

mailto:kleind@OakGov.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 























































B4

MEMO 

Date:  October 12, 2023 
To: Honorable Council President and members of Council 
From:  Jeff Campbell, Village Manager 
Subject: Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Land Acquisition Project Agreement 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

In February of 2022, the Village of Beverly Hills submitted an application to the Michigan Natural 
Resources Trust Fund for an acquisition grant to purchase property located at 30815 Wendbrook 
in Beverly Hills, MI.  The project is entitled the Rouge River Acquisition.  The application requested 
that the MNRTF issue an acquisition grant amount of $1,500,000 with the Beverly Hills providing 
a match of $500,000 to cover a proposed purchase price of $2,000,000.  The proposed Beverly 
Hills match was to come from the current owner of the property, Mike and Martha White. 

In December of 2022, the MNRTF approved a grant of $1,000,000 dollars to fund the purchase of 
the River Rogue Acquisition Project.  The required match from the Village of Beverly Hills is 
$333,400 dollars under the grant.  The Whites have stated that they will donate the grant match 
of $333,400 and the remaining $666,600 to the Village of Beverly Hills for the purchase of the 
property. 

On August 7, 2023, the DNR forwarded a Project Agreement to the Village of Beverly Hills with 
its standard terms and conditions for an acquisition.  The Project Agreement is attached to this 
memorandum.  In addition, the Project Agreement requires that the Village include a legal 
description and boundary map.  A legal description and boundary map is attached to this 
memorandum.  The Agreement sets forth the grant amount provided by the MNRTF and the 
Village’s required match.  It also states that the Village must choose a closing option at the signing 
of this Agreement.  The closing options are: 

• Utilizing a Grant Reimbursement Process

• Utilizing an Escrow Closing Process



B4 

The Grantee shall also immediately make funds available to meet the match, complete a 40 year 
title search, an environmental assessment, and obtain two (2) appraisals prior the purchase of 
the property.   Under the Agreement, the acquisition must be completed by August 31, 2025. 
The Agreement sets forth conditions and requirements related to the purchase of the property.  

Please be advised that the Agreement may be cancelled by the DNR with a 30-day notice to the 
Village, due to Executive Order, budgetary reduction, or other lack of funding.  The Village may 
terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason.  Both parties can also mutually cancel the 
agreement at any time as well.   

The DNR requires that the Agreement is approved by Resolution.  Attached for review and 
consideration is the proposed resolution.   



Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

RESOLUTION OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ACQUISITION AGREEMENT 
WITH THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Beverly Hills supports the submission of an application titled, “Rouge 
River Acquisition,” to the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund for acquisition of the of 8.32 
acres of land for public outdoor recreation and habitat conservation park along the Rogue River 
at or about 30815 Wendbrook, Beverly Hills, Michigan 48025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Beverly Hills is hereby making a financial commitment to the project in 
the amount of a minimum of 333,400.00 matching funds, in cash and/or force account; and 
 
WHEREAS, on August, 7, 2023, Department of Natural Resources, on behalf of the Michigan 
Natural Resources Trust Fund, submitted a Land Acquisition Project Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Village of Beverly Hills, Michigan, does hereby accept the 
terms of the Agreement as received from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources and 
that the Village of Beverly Hills does hereby specifically agree, but not by way of limitation, as 
follows: 
 
To appropriate all funds necessary to complete the project during the project period and to 
provide Three Hundred Thirty-Three Thousand Four Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($333,400.00) 
dollars to match the grant authorized by the DEPARTMENT. 
 
To maintain satisfactory financial accounts, documents, and records to make them available to 
the DEPARTMENT for auditing at reasonable times in perpetuity. 
 
To regulate the use of the property acquired and reserved under this Agreement to assure the 
use thereof by the public on equal and reasonable terms. 
 
To comply with any and all terms of said Agreement including all terms not specifically set forth 
in the foregoing portions of this Resolution. 
 
 
AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:   
 



Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

Resolution declared adopted.  

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN    ) 
                                         )ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Beverly Hills Village Council, Oakland County, Michigan, on the ___ day of ______ 
2023, the original of which is on file in my office. 
 
I further certify that notice of the meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with Act 
No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed by official signature this ___ day of ______ 2023. 
 

 

 

       _________________________ 
       Kristin Rutkowski 

       Village Clerk 



MICHIGAN NATURAL RESOURCES TRUST FUND 

LAND ACQUISITION PROJECT AGREEMENT
This information is required by authority of Part 5 of Act 451, P.A. 1994 as amended, to receive funds.

Michigan Department of Natural Resources - Grants Management

Project #: Project Title:  

Amount of grant:  

Amount of match:  

Start Date: Date of Execution by DEPARTMENT

PROJECT TOTAL:

End Date:

GRANTEE

SIGNED

By [Print Name]:

Title: 

Organization: 

DUNS #

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

SIGNED:

By

Grants Section Manager

Date: 

SIGMA Vendor Number SIGMA Address ID

Required - Please choose one 

Acquisition Closing Option Desired: 

This project will be completed utilizing a 

grant reimbursement process.  Grantee 

will purchase land and seek 

reimbursement after closing.

This project will be completed utilizing an 

escrow closing process.

Date of Execution by DEPARTMENT

Rouge River Acquisition TF22-0048

08/31/2025

This Agreement is between Village of Beverly Hills in the county of Oakland County hereinafter referred to as the "GRANTEE," and 

the MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, an agency of the State of Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the 

“DEPARTMENT.”  The DEPARTMENT has authority to issue grants to local units of government or public authorities for the 

acquisition of land for resource protection and public outdoor recreation under Part 19 of the Natural Resources and Environmental 

Protection Act, Act 451 of 1994, as amended, and under Article IX, Section 35 of the Michigan Constitution. The GRANTEE has been 

approved by the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF) Board of Trustees (BOARD) to receive a grant. In Public Act 119 of 

2023, the Legislature appropriated funds from the MNRTF to the DEPARTMENT for a grant-in-aid to the GRANTEE.  

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide funding to acquire land or rights in land for the project named below . This Agreement is 

subject to the terms and conditions specified herein. 

As a precondition to the effectiveness of this Agreement , the GRANTEE is required to sign and return it to the DEPARTMENT with 

the necessary attachments by 10/06/2023, or the Agreement may be cancelled by the DEPARTMENT.  This Agreement is not 

effective until the GRANTEE has signed it, returned it, and the DEPARTMENT has signed it. The Agreement is considered 

executed when signed by the DEPARTMENT.  

The individuals signing below certify by their signatures that they are authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of their agencies , 

and that the parties will fulfill the terms of this Agreement , including any attached appendices, as set forth herein. 

75%

25%

$1,000,000.00

$333,400.00

$1,333,400.00

CV0048766

Page 1 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

Land Acquisition Project Agreement

GRANTEE CONTACT

Name/Title

Organization

Address

Telephone Number

DEPARTMENT CONTACT

Address

E-mail Address E-mail Address

Telephone Number

Address

Address

Organization

Name/Title

MNRTF Grant Program Manager

Grants Management/DNR Finance & Operations

525 W. Allegan Street, Lansing, MI  48933

P.O. Box 30425, Lansing, MI  48909

517-284-7268

DNR-Grants@michigan.gov

1.   This Agreement shall be administered on behalf of the DEPARTMENT by the Grants Management Section within the 

Finance and Operations Division.  All notices, reports, documents, requests, actions or other communications required 

between the DEPARTMENT and the GRANTEE shall be submitted through the department’s online grant management 

system, MiRecGrants, which is accessed through www.michigan.gov/dnr-grants, unless otherwise instructed by the 

DEPARTMENT.  Primary points of contact pertaining to this agreement shall be:

2. The legal description of the project area, boundary map of the project area, and the land acquisition grant application bearing 

the number TF22-0048 uploaded to MiRecGrants are by this reference made part of this Agreement .  The Agreement 

together with the referenced documents in MiRecGrants constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and may be 

modified only in writing and executed in the same manner as the Agreement is executed .

3.   The time period allowed for project completion is from 08/07/2023 through 08/31/2025, hereinafter referred to as the “project 

period.”  Requests by the GRANTEE to extend the project period shall be submitted in MiRecGrants before the expiration of 

the project period.  Extensions to the project period are at the discretion of the DEPARTMENT and may only be extended 

by an amendment to this Agreement.

4. The grant herein provided is for the acquisition by the GRANTEE of 8.32 acres of land in Fee Simple title free of all liens and 

encumbrances, situated and being in the city/village/township of Beverly Hills, in the County of Oakland, STATE OF 

MICHIGAN as described in the uploaded legal description and shown on the uploaded boundary map.  As used in this 

Agreement, the words “project area” shall mean the lands acquired under this Agreement as described in this Section . 

5. The project area shall be used for public outdoor recreation and habitat conservation, as further described in the 

GRANTEE’S proposal to the DEPARTMENT and approved by the MNRTF Board.  Significant changes in the use of the 

project area as described in this Section require the prior written authorization of the DEPARTMENT .

6. In order to preserve the financial resources of the State of Michigan and to prevent unjust enrichment of a third party interim 

owner, if the landowner listed in the project application grants any rights in the real property to an individual or agency other 

than the GRANTEE, the DEPARTMENT may inspect the terms of the conveyance as a condition to approving the 

GRANTEE to close.

7. The DEPARTMENT will:

a. grant to the GRANTEE a sum of money equal to Seventy-Five percent (75%) as reimbursement or as payment 

into an escrow account for escrow closing, of the total eligible cost of acquisition of fee simple title free of all liens 

Page 2 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

Land Acquisition Project Agreement

and encumbrances to the lands in the project area, not to exceed the sum of One Million dollars ($1,000,000.00). 

Acquisition of easements or other rights in land less than fee simple will be considered on a case by case basis at 

the discretion of the DEPARMENT.

b. include the following in the total cost of acquisition eligible for grant funding (based on grant percentage)  as provided 

for in Section 7(a):

i. Purchase price of the land, up to the market value, in the project area acquired by the GRANTEE during the 

project period as provided for in section 9(f) of this Agreement;

ii. Reasonable and appropriate costs incurred and paid by the GRANTEE during the project period for recording 

fees, title insurance, transfer tax, prorated property tax, closing fees and environmental assessments; and

iii. Costs incurred and paid by the GRANTEE for appraisal(s) as provided for in Section 9(f) and approved by the 

DEPARTMENT. 

c. grant funds to the GRANTEE for eligible costs and expenses incurred, as follows:

i. Payments will be made on a reimbursement basis or to an escrow account for escrow closing for 

Seventy-Five percent (75%) of the eligible expenses incurred by the GRANTEE up to 90% of the 

maximum amount allowable under the grant.  

ii. Reimbursement (or payment to an escrow account for escrow closing) will be made only upon 

DEPARTMENT review and approval of a complete reimbursement (or escrow closing) request submitted by 

the GRANTEE on forms provided by the DEPARTMENT that meet all documentation requirements set forth 

by the DEPARTMENT.  A complete reimbursement or escrow closing request must document the total cost 

of the acquisition and the GRANTEE’s compliance with Section 8 of this Agreement and DEPARTMENT 

acquisition project procedures. 

iii. The DEPARTMENT shall conduct an audit of the project’s financial records upon approval of the final 

reimbursement request or completion of the escrow closing.  The DEPARTMENT may issue an audit report 

with no deductions or may find some costs ineligible for final audit  reimbursement.  

iv. The final 10% of the grant amount will be released upon completion of a satisfactory audit by the 

DEPARTMENT and documentation that the GRANTEE has erected proper signage acknowledging  MNRTF 

assistance in compliance with Section 9(q) of this Agreement.

8. Closing Options: 

a. FOR REIMBURSEMENT PROJECTS:

The GRANTEE shall be eligible for reimbursement only upon GRANTEE’S completion of all of the following:

i. Electing to use the grant reimbursement closing process at time of signing this project agreement (See grey 

box prior to signature section).

ii. Acquisition by GRANTEE of fee simple title free of all liens and encumbrances of all land in the project area. 

Acquisition of easements or other rights in land less than fee simple will be considered on a case by case 

basis at the discretion of the DEPARMENT.

iii. Submission of proof of acquisition of marketable record title to the DEPARTMENT in the form of a policy of 

title insurance ensuring the GRANTEE possesses marketable record title in fee simple, free of all liens and 

encumbrances to the land in the project area. Said policy is to insure the GRANTEE against loss or 

damage at least equal to the purchase price of the subject land. 

iv. Proper conveyance to the State of Michigan of all mineral interest  to which the State is entitled under this 

Agreement as outlined in Section 9(m). 

v. Submission of a complete request for reimbursement as set forth in this Agreement .

b. FOR ESCROW CLOSING PROJECTS:

The GRANTEE shall be eligible for grant funding through escrow closing process only upon GRANTEE’S completion 

of the following:

i. Electing to use the escrow closing process at time of signing this project agreement (See grey box prior to 

signature section).

ii. Securing the services of a reputable title company who will agree to serve as the escrow closing agent.

iii. Execution of escrow closing agreement by GRANTEE, DEPARTMENT, LANDOWNER/SELLER and title 

company (agent).

Page 3 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

Land Acquisition Project Agreement

iv. Providing Department and title company an approximate desired timeframe for closing.

v. Sending DEPARTMENT the draft closing packet (reference Land Acquisition Escrow Closing Package 

Checklist) at least 60 days prior to the desired closing date.

vi. Coordinating with title company to schedule the exact closing date after DEPARTMENT’S approval of draft 

closing documents and submitting to DEPARTMENT an updated closing statement from the title company 

at least 10 days before the desired closing date.

vii. Submitting local matching funds plus 10% of the eligible grant amount to title company for deposit into 

escrow account and providing proof of escrowed funds to the DEPARTMENT.

9. The GRANTEE will:

a. immediately make available all funds needed to pay all necessary costs required to complete the project and to 

provide Three Hundred and Thirty-Three Thousand Four Hundred dollars ($333,400.00) as local match to this 

project.  This sum represents Twenty-Five percent (25%) of the total eligible cost of acquisition including incidental 

costs.  Any cost overruns incurred to complete the project called for by this Agreement shall be the sole 

responsibility of the GRANTEE.

b. complete the acquisition in compliance with the acquisition project procedures set forth by the DEPARTMENT .

c. make no written offer or commitment to purchase lands in the project area before execution of this Agreement and 

before written DEPARTMENT approval as provided for in Section 9.  Failure to comply with this requirement shall, at 

the option of the DEPARTMENT, make the cost of the property an ineligible expense under this Agreement and 

subject this Agreement to termination by the DEPARTMENT.

d. provide verification that the site is not a facility as defined in Part 201 of the Michigan Natural Resources and 

Environmental Protection Act, Act 451 of the Public Acts of 1994, as amended, based on the results of due diligence 

and, if needed, an environmental assessment or, if the site has been determined to be a facility, to provide 

documentation of due care compliance.  The results of the due diligence must be accounted for in the appraisal(s).

e. complete a 40-year title review on the property.  The results of the title review must be accounted for in the 

appraisal(s). 

f. obtain an appraisal of the real estate within the project area in accordance with standards established by the 

DEPARTMENT to determine the market value thereof; two appraisals meeting these standards being required for 

properties valued at $750,000 or more.  Failure to complete the appraisal(s) in this manner shall make the cost of 

said appraisal(s) an ineligible expense under this Agreement.  

g. submit the appraisal(s) to the DEPARTMENT for approval no later than 120 days after the date of execution of this 

Agreement.  No written offer or commitment to purchase land in the project area shall be transmitted by the 

GRANTEE until after approval has been given in writing by the DEPARTMENT.  

h. perform, or to directly contract for the performance of, all appraisal(s), appraisal review(s), title review, closing and 

acquisition of all lands in the project area.

i. eliminate all pre-existing non-recreation uses of the project area within 90 days of the date of acquisition, unless 

otherwise approved by the DEPARTMENT in writing.

j. remove existing structures or make ready for an appropriate use in a reasonable time frame after completion of the 

acquisition.

k. complete acquisition of the entire project area before 08/31/2025.  Failure to acquire the project area by 08/31/2025 

shall constitute a breach of this Agreement and subject the GRANTEE to the remedies provided by law and set forth 

in Section 23 of this Agreement. 

l. provide the DEPARTMENT all documents and information as specified in Sections 8a or 8b of this Agreement.  If 

utilizing reimbursement process, documents must be submitted within 60 days after the transaction is closed.  If 

utilizing escrow closing process, documents must be submitted  no later than 60 days prior to desired closing.  

Failure to submit the required documents and information for review shall constitute a material breach of this 

Agreement.  Proof of payment to seller (such as cancelled check, wire confirmation, etc.), recorded warranty deed, 

recorded mineral royalty deed and recorded Declaration and Notice must be submitted to the DEPARTMENT within 

60 days after closing.  The final 10% of eligible grant amount will be released upon satisfactory audit review and 

approval by the DEPARTMENT.

m. for parcels over 5 acres, execute, acknowledge and deliver to the DEPARTMENT a deed conveying to the State of 

Michigan a perpetual nonparticipating royalty equal to 1/6 of the gross proceeds of sale of all oil and/or gas and other 

minerals produced and saved in any combination from the mineral rights in, on or under the lands in the project area. 

n. retain all rights acquired by the GRANTEE in coal, oil, gas, sand, gravel or any other minerals in, on or under the 

lands in the project area in perpetuity.

o. not develop any rights acquired by the GRANTEE in coal, oil, gas, sand, gravel or any other minerals in, on or under 

the lands in the project area in a manner that diminishes the usefulness of the project area for its intended purposes.  

Page 4 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

Land Acquisition Project Agreement

In addition, GRANTEE agrees not to develop, or allow others to develop, any such minerals from sites adjacent to 

the project area in a manner that diminishes the usefulness of the project area for its intended purposes.

p. maintain satisfactory financial accounts, records, and documents and to make them available to the DEPARTMENT 

for auditing upon request.  Such accounts, records, and documents shall be retained by the GRANTEE for not less 

than three years following submittal of the final audit reimbursement request . 

q. erect and maintain a sign or other acknowledgement as approved by the DEPARTMENT on the property which 

designates this project as one having been acquired with the assistance of the MNRTF .  The size, color, and design 

of this sign shall be in accordance with DEPARTMENT specifications.

r. conduct a dedication/ribbon-cutting ceremony as soon as possible after the project is completed and the MNRTF 

sign is erected within the project area.  At least 30 days prior to the dedication/ribbon-cutting ceremony, the 

DEPARTMENT must be notified in writing of the date, time, and location of the dedication/ribbon-cutting ceremony.  

GRANTEE shall provide notice of ceremony in the local media.  Use of the grant program logo and a brief description 

of the program are strongly encouraged in public recreation brochures produced by the GRANTEE.  At the discretion 

of the DEPARTMENT, the requirement to conduct a dedication/ribbon-cutting ceremony may be waived.

s. provide the DEPARTMENT for approval, a complete tariff schedule containing all charges to be assessed against the 

public utilizing the project area and/or any facilities constructed thereon, and to provide the DEPARTMENT for 

approval, all amendments thereto before the effective date of such amendments .  Any tariff schedule proposed shall 

provide solely for sufficient revenues to cover the costs of operating , maintaining and/or developing the premises 

and/or any facilities provided thereon.  Preferential membership or annual permit systems are prohibited at this site.  

Differences in admission and other fees may be instituted on the basis of residence . Nonresident fees shall not 

exceed twice that charged residents.  If no resident fees are charged, nonresident fees may not exceed the rate 

charged residents at other comparable state and local public recreation facilities.

t. separately account for any revenues received from the project area which exceed the demonstrated operating costs 

and to reserve such surplus revenues for the future maintenance and/or expansion of the GRANTEE’S park and 

outdoor recreation program.

u. furnish the DEPARTMENT, upon request, detailed statements covering the annual operation of project area and/or 

facilities, including income and expenses and such other information the DEPARTMENT might reasonably require .

v. adopt such ordinances and/or resolutions as shall be required to effectuate the provisions of this Agreement ; certified 

copies of all such ordinances and/or resolutions adopted for such purposes shall be forwarded to the DEPARTMENT 

before the effective date thereof.

w. maintain the premises in such condition as to comply with all federal, state, and local laws which may be applicable 

and to make any and all payments required to pay any and all taxes, fees, or assessments legally imposed against 

the project area.

x. make the project area and any facilities located thereon, as well as the land and water access ways to them, open 

to the public within 90 days of the date of acquisition and keep them open to the public at all times on equal and 

reasonable terms.  No individual shall be denied ingress or egress thereto or the use thereof because of sex, race, 

color, religion, national origin, residence, age, height, weight, familial status, marital status or disability. 

y. make the project area and any future facilities provided thereon available for public outdoor recreation in perpetuity 

and in accordance with uses described in this Agreement and APPENDIX C, to regulate the use thereof and to 

provide for the maintenance thereof to the satisfaction of the DEPARTMENT, and to appropriate such moneys and/or 

provide such services as shall be necessary to provide such adequate maintenance.

10. The GRANTEE shall acquire fee simple title, free of all liens, encumbrances, or restrictions on future use to the lands in the 

project area.  The fee simple title acquired shall not be subject to (1) any possibility of reversion or right of entry for condition 

broken or any other executory limitation which may result in defeasance of title or (2) to any reservations or prior 

conveyance of coal, oil, gas, sand, gravel or any other mineral interests.  

11. The GRANTEE shall not allow any encumbrance, lien, security interest, mortgage or any evidence of indebtedness to attach 

to or be perfected against the project area.

12. The project area and any facilities located thereon shall not be wholly or partially conveyed, either in fee, easement or 

otherwise, or leased for a term of years, or for any other period, nor shall there be any whole or partial transfer of title, 

ownership, or right of ownership or control without the written approval and consent of the DEPARTMENT .

13. The assistance provided to the GRANTEE as a result of this Agreement is intended to have a lasting effect on the supply of 

outdoor recreation, scenic beauty sites, and recreation facilities beyond the financial contribution alone and permanently 

commits the project area to Michigan’s outdoor recreation estate , therefore:

a. The GRANTEE agrees that lands in the project area are being acquired with MNRTF assistance and shall be 

Page 5 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

Land Acquisition Project Agreement

maintained in public outdoor recreation use in perpetuity.  No portion of the project area shall be converted to other 

than public outdoor recreation use without the approval of the DEPARTMENT.  The DEPARTMENT shall approve 

such conversion only upon such conditions as it deems necessary to assure the substitution by GRANTEE of other 

outdoor recreation properties of equal or greater market value and of reasonably equivalent usefulness and location.  

Such substituted land shall become part of the project area and will be subject to all the provisions of this 

Agreement.  

b. Approval of a conversion shall be at the sole discretion of the DEPARTMENT.  

c. Before completion of the project, the GRANTEE and the DEPARTMENT may mutually agree to alter the project area 

through an amendment to this Agreement to provide the most satisfactory public outdoor recreation area .

 

14. Should title to the lands in the project area or any portion thereof be acquired from the GRANTEE by any other entity 

through exercise of the power of eminent domain, the GRANTEE agrees that the proceeds awarded to the GRANTEE shall 

be used to replace the lands affected with outdoor recreation properties  of equal or greater market value, and of reasonably 

equivalent usefulness and location.  The DEPARTMENT shall approve such replacement only upon such conditions as it 

deems necessary to assure the substitution with other outdoor recreation properties of equal or greater market value and of 

reasonably equivalent usefulness and location.  Such replacement land shall be subject to all the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

15. The GRANTEE acknowledges that:

a. The GRANTEE has examined the project area and has found the property safe for public use or actions will be taken 

by the GRANTEE to make the property safe for public use no later than 90 days after the date of acquisition; and

b. The GRANTEE is solely responsible for development, operation, and maintenance of the project area, and that 

responsibility for actions taken to develop, operate, or maintain the project area is solely that of the GRANTEE; and 

c. The DEPARTMENT’S involvement in the premises is limited solely to the making of a grant to assist the GRANTEE 

in acquiring the premises.

d. The GRANTEE acknowledges that the DEPARTMENT is not responsible for any tax liability assessed on the 

property after closing by the GRANTEE.  Further, the eligible amount of tax pro-rated at time of closing will be 

determined by the DEPARTMENT.

16. Before the DEPARTMENT will give approval to make a written offer to purchase the property included in this project , the 

GRANTEE must provide documentation to the DEPARTMENT that indicates either:

a. It is reasonable for the GRANTEE to conclude, based on the advice of an environmental consultant, as appropriate, 

that no portion of the project area is a facility as defined in Part 201 of the Michigan Natural Resources and 

Environmental Protection Act, Act 451 of the Public Acts of 1994, as amended; 

or

b. If any portion of the project area is a facility, documentation that Department of Environment, Great Lakes and 

Energy-approved response actions have been or will be  taken to make the site safe for its intended use within the 

project period, and that implementation and long-term maintenance of response actions will not hinder public outdoor 

recreation use and/or the resource protection values of the project area.

17. If the DEPARTMENT determines that, based on contamination, the project area will not be made safe for the planned 

recreation use within the project period, or another date established by the DEPARTMENT in writing, or if the 

DEPARTMENT determines that the presence of contamination will reduce the overall usefulness of the property for public 

recreation and resource protection, the grant may be cancelled by the DEPARTMENT with no reimbursement made to the 

GRANTEE.

18. The GRANTEE shall acquire and maintain, or cause to be acquired or maintained, insurance which will protect the 

GRANTEE from claims which may arise out of or result from the GRANTEE’S operations under this Agreement , whether 

performed by the GRANTEE, a subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the GRANTEE, or anyone for 

whose acts may hold them liable.  Such insurance shall be with companies authorized to do business in the State of 

Michigan in such amounts and against such risks as are ordinarily carried by similar entities, including but not limited to 

public liability insurance, worker’s compensation insurance or a program of self -insurance complying with the requirements 

of Michigan law.  The GRANTEE shall provide evidence of such insurance to the DEPARTMENT at its request .

Page 6 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

Land Acquisition Project Agreement

19. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to impose any obligation upon the DEPARTMENT to operate , maintain or 

provide funding for the operation and/or maintenance of any recreational facilities in the project area.

20. The GRANTEE hereby represents that it will defend any suit brought against either party which involves title, ownership, or 

any other rights, whether specific or general, including any appurtenant riparian rights, to and in the project area and any 

lands connected with or affected by this project .

21. The GRANTEE is responsible for the use and occupancy of the premises, the project area and the facilities thereon.  The 

GRANTEE is responsible for the safety of all individuals who are invitees or licensees of the premises.  The GRANTEE will 

defend all claims resulting from the use and occupancy of the premises, the project area and the facilities thereon.  The 

DEPARTMENT is not responsible for the use and occupancy of the premises, the project area and the facilities thereon.

22. Failure by the GRANTEE to comply with any of the provisions of this Agreement shall constitute a material breach of this 

Agreement.

23. Upon breach of the Agreement by the GRANTEE, the DEPARTMENT, in addition to any other remedy provided by law and 

this Agreement, may:

a. Terminate this Agreement; and/or

b. Withhold and/or cancel future payments to the GRANTEE on any or all current recreation grant projects until the 

violation is resolved to the satisfaction of the DEPARTMENT; and/or

c. Withhold action on all pending and future grant applications submitted by the GRANTEE under the Michigan Natural 

Resources Trust Fund, the Land and Water Conservation Fund and the Recreation Passport Grant Program ; and/or

d. Require repayment of grant funds already paid to GRANTEE; and/or

e. Seek specific performance of the Agreement terms. 

24. This Agreement may be canceled by the DEPARTMENT, upon 30 days written notice, due to Executive Order, budgetary 

reduction, other lack of funding, upon request by the GRANTEE, or upon mutual Agreement by the DEPARTMENT and 

GRANTEE. The DEPARTMENT may honor requests for just and equitable compensation to the GRANTEE for all 

satisfactory and eligible work completed under this Agreement up until 30 days after written notice, upon which time all 

outstanding reports and documents are due to the DEPARTMENT and the DEPARTMENT will no longer be liable to pay the 

GRANTEE for any further charges to the grant.

25. The GRANTEE agrees that the benefit to be derived by the State of Michigan from the full compliance by the GRANTEE with 

the terms of this Agreement is the preservation, protection and the net increase in the quality of public outdoor recreation 

facilities and resources which are available to the people of the State and of the United States and such benefit exceeds to 

an immeasurable and unascertainable extent the amount of money furnished by the State of Michigan by way of assistance 

under the terms of this Agreement.  The GRANTEE agrees that after final audit reimbursement has been made to the 

GRANTEE, repayment by the GRANTEE of grant funds received would be inadequate compensation to the State for any 

breach of this Agreement.  The GRANTEE further agrees therefore, that the appropriate remedy in the event of a breach by 

the GRANTEE of this Agreement after final audit reimbursement has been made shall be the specific performance of this 

Agreement.  

26. The GRANTEE agrees not to discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, 

terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of religion, 

race, color, national origin, age, sex, sexual orientation, height, weight, marital status, partisan considerations, or a 

disability or genetic information that is unrelated to the person's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position.  

The GRANTEE further agrees that any subcontract shall contain non-discrimination provisions which are not less stringent 

than this provision and binding upon any and all subcontractors.  A breach of this covenant shall be regarded as a material 

breach of this Agreement.

27. The GRANTEE may not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement without prior written authorization of the 

DEPARTMENT.

28. The rights of the DEPARTMENT under this Agreement shall continue  in perpetuity. 

If this Agreement is approved by Resolution, a true copy must be attached to this Agreement. A sample Resolution is on the next 

page.

Page 7 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

Land Acquisition Project Agreement

Page 8 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

Land Acquisition Project Agreement

SAMPLE RESOLUTION  

(Acquisition)

Upon motion made by ______________________________, seconded by 

________________________, the following Resolution was adopted:

“RESOLVED, that the _____________________________, Michigan, does hereby accept the 

terms of the Agreement as received from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources and that the 

______________________________ does hereby specifically agree, but not by way of limitation, as 

follows:

1. To appropriate all funds necessary to complete the project during the project period and to provide 

___________________________($_____________) dollars to match the grant authorized by the 

DEPARTMENT.

2. To maintain satisfactory financial accounts, documents, and records to make them available to the 

DEPARTMENT for auditing at reasonable times in perpetuity.

3. To regulate the use of the property acquired and reserved under this Agreement to assure the use 

thereof by the public on equal and reasonable terms.

4. To comply with any and all terms of said Agreement including all terms not specifically set forth in the 

foregoing portions of this Resolution.

The following aye votes were recorded:  ________________

The following nay votes were recorded:  ________________

STATE OF MICHIGAN       )

)  ss

COUNTY OF ____________ )

I, _______________________________, Clerk of the ___________________________, Michigan, do 

hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the Resolution relative to the Agreement with the 

Michigan Department of Natural Resources, which Resolution was adopted by the 

______________________________ at a meeting held ________________________.

________________________________

Signature

________________________________

Title

_______________________________

Dated

Page 9 of 9 PR1921 (Rev. 06/05/2020)







B5 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 Jeff Campbell, Village Manager; Mark Stec, Planning & Zoning Administrator  
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Second Announcement of a Planning Commission Vacancy  
 
Date:   October 5, 2023            
 
There is a vacancy on the Planning Commission for a partial term ending June 30, 2024. 
 
The Planning Commission generally meets on the fourth Wednesday of the month at 7:30 p.m. The 
Planning Commission advises the Village Council regarding the proper physical development of Beverly 
Hills. The Commission recommends ordinances or amendments to existing ordinances. It also makes 
recommendations on zoning changes, site plan developments, and special approval uses. 
 
All interested and eligible residents of Beverly Hills are encouraged to apply to become a member of the 
Planning Commission. Applications are available on the Village website or by emailing the Village Clerk at 
krutkowski@villagebeverlyhills.com. Applications may be submitted to the Clerk’s office via email, regular 
mail, in person, or using the drop box located outside the Village office (18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly 
Hills, MI 48025). A copy of the application is included in this meeting packet.  
 
Applications are due Tuesday, October 31, 2023.  
 
Appointments are scheduled to take place at the November 7, 2023 Regular Village Council meeting.  
 
This constitutes the second announcement of a vacancy on the Planning Commission. 

mailto:krutkowski@villagebeverlyhills.com


 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Jeff Campbell, Village Manager 
 
Subject: Manager’s Report 
 
Date:   October 13, 2023 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Halloween Hoot 

The Halloween Hoot will be held at Beverly Park on Saturday, October 28, 2023 from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. 

We have received an overwhelming response this year and we are looking forward to seeing all the 

decorated treat stations! Thanks to our sponsors, this event is free to attend. 

 

Coats for the Cold Coat Drive 

The Village will be participating in Oakland County Sheriff, Mike Bouchard’s, Coats for the Cold Coat Drive 

from November 1 to November 30, 2023.  There will be a collection box set up at Village Hall, 18500 W. 

13 Mile Road, to receive the donated coats. 

Construction Update  

The 2023 patching will be complete by the week of October 16th.  We want to thank the residents for their 

cooperation and patience during a busy construction season that saw road improvements, the installation 

of a roundabout, and work by various utility companies. The Administrative staff understands the 

inconvenience and appreciates the understanding of Village residents.       

 

Speed Humps 

HRC just completed the speed study on Weston and Saxon.  This was done prior to the installation of the 

speed humps to ensure that the Village has meaningful data to the measure the effectiveness of the pilot 

program.  We will be reviewing and analyzing the data in the coming weeks.  However, to ensure an 

effective pilot program and to make sure the humps are not damaged by the snowplows, we will be 

installing the speed humps in spring.  It is anticipated the humps will now be installed by April 1, 2023.     

 

Audit and OPEB Update 

Plante Moran, the Village auditors, will appear before Council at the November 7, 2023 meeting to discuss 

the Fiscal Year 2023 Village audit and the audited Financial Statements.  The auditors will include a brief 

overview of the GASB 74/75 annual actuarial valuation report as of June 30, 2023 prepared by Nyhart. 



This report updates the Net OPEB liability and funded ratio percentage for the Village Retiree Health Care 

Plan.  

Robert Borgon 

Robert (Bob) Borgon, former Councilmember and former member of the Birmingham Area Cable Board 

recently passed away.  Mr. Borgon served as a distinguished Board Member, the Chairman, and the 

Executive Director of the Cable Boad, making immeasurable contributions to the Cable Board.  Mr. Borgon 

also used his expertise on Public, Educational, and Governmental Access Channels to chair the PEG 

Committee.  He also hosted numerous broadcasts of community events, most notably, the Village’s annual 

Memorial Day Parade. 

 

The Village of Beverly Hills Administration and employees would like to express our condolences to Mr. 

Borgon’s family and recognize his service to the Village of Beverly Hills and our residents.  Thank you, Mr. 

Borgon. 

 

  

 



 

1 
 

Beverly Hills Public Safety 
Activity Report 

 Sept. 28th – Oct. 12th, 2023   

 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 

•  303 Calls for Service. 

•  42 Tickets issued. 

•  8 Arrests.  

• Assisted Bloomfield Township PD at 14 Mile and 
Evergreen. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Groves High School. 

• Extra Patrol at Medical Village. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Auburn. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Hillview. 

• Extra Patrol at the Beverly Hills Club. 

• Extra Patrol at the Corners Shopping Mall. 

• Welfare Check on Southfield. 

• Mutual Aid for a house fire in Berkley on Eaton. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile and Huntley Square. 

• Parking Complaint on Normandale. 

• Traffic Accident on Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol around Robinhood and Nottingham. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Medical on Auburn. 

• Extra Patrol in the Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol around Balmoral and Riverside. 

• Crime Prevention at Berkshire School. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Camelot. 

• Extra Patrol around Waltham and Sunset. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Parking Complaint at the Village Offices. 

• Extra Patrol through Beverly Park. 

• Extra Patrol around Foxboro and Metamora. 

• Crime Prevention at Queen of Martyrs. 



 

2 
 

• Extra Patrol around Nottingham and Robinhood. 

• Extra Patrol around Eastlady and Smallwood. 

• Extra Patrol around Sunset and Waltham. 

• Asist Birmingham PD at Cedar and Catalpa. 

• Traffic Accident at Groves High School. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Groves High School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Traffic Accident at Riverside and Faircrest. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Extra Patrol at Oktoberfest Festival at Queen of 
Martyrs. 

• Medical on 13 Mile. 

• Officer stopped a driver for a minor traffic violation at 
Southfield and 13 Mile. The driver was arrested for 
Driving While License Suspended and was taken into 
custody without incident. 

• Medical in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Odor Investigation on Saxon. 

• Extra Patrol at Oktoberfest Festival at Queen of 
Martyrs. 

• Medical on Sheridan. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Douglas Evans Park closed for the night. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Southfield. 

• Radar Detail on Beverly and Southfield. 

• Noise Complaint in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Assist Citizen at Mission Point. 

• Medical on Rivers Edge. 

• Crime Prevention at Detroit Country Day School. 

• Animal Complaint on Southfield. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Hillview. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Extra Patrol around Kennoway and 13 Mile. 

• Animal Complaint on Old Post and 14 Mile. 

• Suspicious Persons on Fairfax. 

• Medical on Plantation. 

• Solicitor Complaint on Bellvine Trail. 

• Medical on Village Pines. 

• Alarm on Southfield. 

• Alarm on Wellesley. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Traffic Accident at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Traffic Accident at 13 Mile and Southfield. 



 

3 
 

• Medical on Lincolnshire. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Extra Patrol around Birmingham and Buckingham. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Vehicle Lockout at Ace Hardware. 

• Medical on Vernon. 

• Fire Truck Checks at the station. 

• Officers picked up a subject with an outstanding 
warrant from Berkley PD. The subject was arrested 
without incident. 

• Burglary at Club Pilates. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Douglas Evans Park closed for the night. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Extra Patrol around Evergreen and Wilshire. 

• Follow up report made at Club Pilates. 

• Alarm on Southfield. 

• Parking complaint on Birwood. 

• Extra Patrol in Beverly Park. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Extra Patrol around Walmer and Churchill. 

• Extra Patrol around Medical Village. 

• Natural Gas Leak reported on Amherst. 

• Officers picked up a subject with an outstanding 
warrant from Novi PD. The arrest was without 
incident. 

• Extra Patrol around Market Fresh. 

• Medical on Lahser. 

• Crime Prevention at Acacia Cemetery. 

• Suspicious Persons on Lahser. 

• Medical on Waltham. 

• Welfare Check at Mission Point. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Kirkshire. 

• Noise Complaint on Kinross. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen. 

• Fire Truck Checks at the station. 

• Radar Detail at Beverly and Bates. 

• Odor Investigation on Riverside. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Suspicious Persons on 14 Mile. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol around Pierce and Kirkshire. 

• Extra Patrol around Metamora and Sleepy Hollow. 



 

4 
 

• Crime Prevention in the Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol around Riverside and Drury. 

• Extra Patrol around Old Post and Wellesley. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 13 Mile and Greenfield. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Medical on Lahser. 

• Alarm on Kirkshire. 

• Medical on Beverly. 

• Alarm on Kirkshire. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Medical on Gould Court. 

• Reckless Driving reported at Southfield and 14 Mile. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Medical on Beverly. 

• Motorist Assist at Lahser and Stafford. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Beverly. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen. 

• Medical on Old Post. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Southfield. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol at the Corners Shopping Mall. 

• Extra Patrol around Georgetown and Shagbark. 

• Suspicious Persons on Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol around 13 Mile and Greenfield. 

• Radar Detail at Lahser and Hampton. 

• Radar Detail at Southfield and Beechwood. 

• Medical on Charrington. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Medical on Plumwood. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile. 

• Motorist Assist at Mission Point. 

• Fraud report taken on Vernon. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Motorist Assist at 13 Mile and Lahser. 

• Extra Patrol around the Village Offices. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Extra Patrol around 14 Mile and Bellvine Trail. 

• Reckless Driving reported at 13 Mile and Greenfield. 



 

5 
 

• Officers stopped a driver for a minor traffic violation at 
Southfield and 13 Mile. The driver was arrested for 
Driving While License Suspended and warrants. The 
arrest was without incident. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Radar Detail at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Extra Patrol in the Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol at Buckingham and Pierce. 

• Extra Patrol at Westlady and Bellvine Trail. 

• Suspicious Person on Beverly. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Welfare Check on Amherst. 

• Parking Complaint on Smallwood. 

• Reckless Driving reported on Greenfield. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Traffic Accident at Evergreen and 13 Mile. 

• Fire Alarm on Devonshire. 

• Frie Alarm on Plumwood. 

• Crime Prevention at Groves Football Game. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Crime Prevention at Berkshire School. 

• Informational Report made at Berkshire School. 

• Animal Complaint on Warwick. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Police Training at the station. 

• Officers stopped a driver for a minor traffic violation. 
The driver was arrested for Drunk Driving and Open 
Alcohol Container. The arrest was without incident. 

• Medical on Valley Oaks. 

• Road Hazard sectioned off at Beverly and Southfield. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Suspicious Person on Smallwood. 

• Extra Patrol at the Corners Shopping Mall. 

• Reckless Driving reported on Southfield. 

• Motorist Assist on 13 Mile and Lahser. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Gun Permit Issued at the station. 

• Extra Patrol at the Beverly Hills Club. 

• Carbon Monoxide Alarm on Plumwood. 

• Extra Patrol around Lincolnshire and Shagbark. 



 

6 
 

• Motorist Assist at Southfield and 14 Mile. 

• Reckless Driving reported on Pierce. 

• Traffic Accident at Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Suspicious Person on 13 Mile. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Pierce and Beechwood. 

• Extra Patrol around Norchester and Hill Crest. 

• Traffic Enforcement around Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on 13 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol around Old Pond and Evergreen. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol around Eastlady and Smallwood. 

• Crime Prevention at Detroit Country Day School. 

• Extra Patrol in the Georgetown Subdivision. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Kirkshire and Pierce. 

• Extra Patrol around Riverside and Balmoral. 

• Radar Detail at Beverly and Bates. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Citizen Assist on Reedmere. 

• Police Training at the station. 

• Alarm on Fairfax. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Road Hazard removed at 14 Mile and Forest Lane. 

• Public Relations at block party on Chelton. 

• Noise Complaint on Gould and Southfield. 

• Alarm at Groves High School. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Evergreen. 

• Suspicious Persons on Smallwood. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen. 

• Suspicious Person on Southfield. 

• Noise Complaint in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Citizen Assist on Ronsdale. 

• Animal Complaint on Wendbrook. 

• Citizen Assist on Riverside. 

• Public Relations at a block party on Robinhood. 

• Fire Truck Checks at the station. 

• Extra Patrol in the Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol in Acacia Cemetery after hours. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 13 Mile and Evergreen. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Gun Permit issued at station. 



 

7 
 

• Crime Prevention at Queen of Martyrs School. 

• Informational Report taken at Penn Station. 

• Extra Patrol on Southfield. 

• Suspicious Person on Gould Court. 

• Extra Patrol on Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol at the old Bed, Bath and Beyond store. 

• Welfare Check on Madison. 

• Crime Prevention at Groves High School. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Family Trouble on Cline. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile. 

• Douglas Evans Park closed for the night. 

• Crime Prevention at Berkshire School. 

• Suspicious Person at 13 Mile and Greenfield. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Suspicious Person at Greenfield School. 

• Radar Detail on Southfield at Gould. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh. 

• Crime Prevention at Groves High School. 

• Extra Patrol around Birmingham and Birwood. 

• Medical on Topper Court. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Officers stopped a driver for a minor traffic violation 
on Evergreen near Village. The driver was arrested 
for warrants and turned over to Lathrup PD without 
incident. 

• Wires Down at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Lift Assist in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Crime Prevention at Berkshire School. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 

• Assist Southfield PD with an accident at Southfield 
and 13 Mile. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Mental Health Call on Beverly Court. 

• PPO Notice on Kirkshire. 

• Groves Football Game Detail. 

• Fraud reported on Devonshire. 

• Hospice Death on Madoline. 

• Suspicious Circumstances in Huntley Square 
Apartments. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly School. 



 

8 
 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly Park. 

• Officers stopped a driver for a moving violation at 
Southfield and Beverly. The driver was arrested for 
Driving While License Suspended and taken into 
custody without incident. 

• Medical on 13 Mile. 

• Larceny reported at Market Fresh. 

• Traffic Accident on White Oaks Trail. 

• Odor Investigation on Pickwick. 

• Extra Patrol at the Beverly Hills Club. 

• Animal Complaint on Hampton. 

• Prisoner Transport from Birmingham PD. 

• Crime Prevention at Greenfield School. 

• Extra Patrol on Elwood. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beaconsfield and Saxon. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Radar Detail at 14 Mile and Pierce. 

• Extra Patrol around Robinhood and Nottingham. 

• Hospice Death on Drury Lane. 

• Extra Patrol around Nixon and Southview. 

• Extra Patrol around Madison and Dunblaine. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 14 Mile and Lahser. 

• Extra Patrol around Stafford and Lahser. 

• Extra Patrol around Mayfair and Nixon. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 13 Mile and Evergreen. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments. 
 

Fire & Emergency Medical Services 
 

• 1 Structure Fire (automatic mutual aid to Berkley). 

• 27 EMS Calls. 

• 1 Hazardous Condition. 

• 2 Natural Gas Leak. 

• 1 Smoke Removal (careless cook). 

• 1 Lift Assist. 

• 1 Smoke Investigation. 

• 3 Fire Alarms. 

• 4 CO Alarms. 

• 2 Special Incident – Other. 

• 2 Weekly Apparatus Checks. 

• Supervise Midnight Platoons 3 and 4. 

• NFIRS data uploaded to FEMA. 

javascript:parent.bobj.event.publish('drilldown',%20'CrystalReportViewer',%20'brch=4-1&name=GroupNameINCIDENTTYPECD1&drillname=900T%2520-%2520Apparatus%2520Checks&gnpath=%252FInc%2520Type%2520First%2520Char%2520for%2520Group%255B9%255D%252FINCIDENT_TB.INCIDENT_TYPE_CD%255B900T%2520-%2520Apparatus%2520Checks%255D')


 

9 
 

• 117 Hours Fire Training Completed. 

• 105 Hours of EMS Training Completed. 

• 2023 Q3 LSA Personnel List Updated and Submitted. 

• 2023 Q3 EQIP Report Completed and Submitted. 

• Attend Monthly MABAS Meeting. 

• Attend Wednesday Wrap Up with State Fire Marshal. 

• Attended SOFA Staff Meeting. 

• Smoke Detector Grant Administration. 

• FEMA AFG SCBA Grant Administration. 

• Attend & Chair County Training Committee Meeting. 

 

Detective Bureau and School Liaison 

• Observed autopsy at Oakland County Medical 
Examiner Office for Overdose. 

• Altered Mental Status in the Elderly training 
completed. 

• Recognizing and Identifying the Hazards fire training 
completed. 

• Creating a Culture of Risk management training 
completed. 

• Traffic Conference at 46th District Court. 
• Court Innovations at 46th District Court. 
• Investigation on ID Theft/Forgery of Checks at 

Independent Bank. 
• Observed Care House Interview for CSC. 
• Safety Presentation completed at Detroit Country Day 

High School. 
• SLO Balagna to Officers to Range for Qualifications. 
• Subpoena sent To Chase Bank for Fraud case. 
• Groves High School Security Detail Completed. 
• SLO Balagna took Property Damage Accident to 

assist patrol. 
• SLO Balagna at Swat training on 10/09/2023. 
• Multiple attempts to identify intel threads sent out. 
• Worked with multiple area departments on Larceny 

From Autos, Fraud/ID and Theft/Forgery of Checks. 
• Arraignment for OWI case. 
• Arraignment for Warrant arrest for Fail to Appear. 

 

 



 

10 
 

That friend request could be from a 
scammer 

• By Kira Krown, Consumer Education Specialist 
October 6, 2023 

•  
• Get a message on social media about an investment 

opportunity? That could be a scam. Learn more: 
ftc.gov/scams 

 
• Scammers are using social media to go after your 

money and personal information. And it is working 
since 2021, people have reported losing $2.7 billion to 
scams that started on social media — way more than 
with any other contact method. 

•   
• Scammers like social media because they can pretend 

to be someone they are not. They can hack your 
profile, pretend to be you, and con your friends. They 
can target you and others using information from your 
profile like your age, hobbies, and what you buy. And 
they can do all this at little to no cost. 

•   
• So, what do social media scams often look like? 

Scammers might target you with an ad for something, 
but after you pay (for the thing that turns out to be fake), 
they take your money and run. Or they might try to sell 
you on a bogus investment opportunity (often involving 
cryptocurrency). Or they might send a friend request 
out of the blue and pretend to be a potential love 
interest. But then…they ask for money. 

•   
• To avoid these and other scams on social media: 
•   
•    Use your privacy settings to limit who can see your 

information and what you post. 
•    Do not reply to messages that ask for money or 

personal information. Even if the message looks like it 
is from a friend or family member, their account may 
have been hacked. Call them to check. 

•    Before you buy something, check out the company. 
Search online for its name along with words like “scam” 
or “complaint.” 

•   
• Did you see or experience a scam on social media? 

Tell the FTC at ReportFraud.ftc.gov. 
 



 

11 
 

MICHIGAN TRAFFIC FATALITY REPORT 
YEAR TO DATE 2023 802 
YEAR TO DATE 2022 872 
 
Spot and stop dishonest charity fundraisers 
By Rosario Méndez, Attorney, Division of Consumer and 
Business Education, FTC 
October 4, 2023 
  
What is worse than a bogus charity? A bogus charity with a 
dishonest fundraiser. The FTC has sued and stopped 
dishonest charity fundraisers that called people to get them to 
donate to fake charities. Some prey on your kindness and 
desire to help people impacted by weather emergencies or a 
disaster. But when you get a call from a charity fundraiser, 
how do you know the caller is telling you the truth? 
  
Here is some advice: 
   Ask the caller specific questions: 
       What is the charity’s name, phone number, or address? 
Write these down so you can confirm them later. Keep in mind 
that many charity names sound alike, and that sham charities 
often use names that sound and look like names of legitimate 
charities. 
       How much of your donation will go directly to the 
programs you want to support? 
       Will your donation be tax-deductible? Not every call 
seeking a donation is from a charity. Some calls might be from 
Political Action Committees or other groups where donations 
are not deductible. See more questions to ask here. 
   Resist the pressure to donate on the spot. After you have 
listened to the caller, hang up the phone and think about what 
they said. Then, go online and do your own research: 
       Search for the organization’s name and phone number, 
plus the word “scam” or “complaint.” What you find might help 
you decide if you want to make that donation. 
       Look up the organization’s name and address. Does it 
show up? If it does not, that could be a sign the caller was 
lying to you. 
       See what these rating organizations say about the 
charity: BBB Wise Giving Alliance, Charity Navigator, Charity 
Watch, and Candid. 
  
If you get a donation request in the mail, do some research 
online before you donate. And if you spot a charity fraud, 
report it to the FTC at ReportFraud.ftc.gov. 



HALLOWEEN HOOT!HALLOWEEN HOOT!
Saturday, October 28, 2023

6:00 - 8:00 PM
Beverly Park

18801 Beverly Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025

Wear a costume and bring a flashlight for 
trick-or-treating around the friendly 

Halloween Hoot trail!

Thanks to our generous sponsors, this event is free to attend!



Coat Drive Runs from November 1 
st  through November 30 

th


	Agenda 10172023 (color)
	C1 Draft Council Minutes 10032023
	C2 Review and File Bills Recapped As Of 10.09.2023
	10.17.2023 Cover Sheet
	CHK

	C4 memo to set for PH at 11-7-23 meeting
	10-11-23_Memo for Council to set for PH PC 23-08-10
	Combined Set (09-05-2023) 10112023 BRC
	(C-0.0) COVER-230842-COVER SHEET
	Sheets and Views
	COVER SHEET


	(C-1.0) SITE PLAN 230842-C-1.0
	Sheets and Views
	C-1.0


	RECREATION CENTER- BEVERLY HILLS MI - SITE PLAN REVIEW 090123
	Sheets
	A1.1 - PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS - PICKLEBALL
	A2.1 - EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A3.1 - PROPOSED BUILDING SECTIONS


	INDOOR RECRETIONAL CENTER_LANDSCAPE PLAN_9.1.23
	PEA.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C-1.0




	B1 MMRMA Insurance Renewal 23-24
	B1 Memo.RenewalLiabillityPolicy.1017.2023.2
	MMRMA Coverage Proposal.2023
	Member Comparison.2023

	B2 Next Contract Docs 23-24
	B2 Next Contract Memo
	NEXT Contract 23-24
	Beverly Hills  - Next 2023

	B3 Local Grant Amendment Docs
	B3 AmendmenttoLocalRecoveryPlanning.Memo
	B3 Amendment Beverly Hills_ARPA Interlocal Agreement for Infrastructure Planning.OC
	B3 Quarterly Grant Reporting Template.OC
	202310131104

	B4 MNRTF Project Agreement Items
	B3 Memo.MNRTF.ProjectAgreement
	B3 Resolution.RiverRogueProjectAgreement.092923
	B3 Project_Agreement_-_MNRTF_56971_130
	B3 TF22-0048 VBH Legal Description
	B3 Boundary Map TF22-0048 VBH (1)

	B5 Planning Vacancy
	ManagerReport.10.13.23
	BHPS Weekly Activity Sept 28-Oct 12 2023
	Info Item Halloween Hoot Flyer 2023
	Info Item Coat Drive Flyer 2023



